
City of Swartz Creek 
AGENDA 

Special Council Meeting, Monday, April 28, 2014, 6:00 P.M. 
City Hall Building, 8083 Civic Drive Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 

1. CALL TO ORDER:

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

3. ROLL CALL:

4. MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES:
4A. Special Council Meeting of April 14, 2014 MOTION Pg. 21 

5. APPROVE AGENDA
5A. Proposed / Amended Agenda MOTION Pg. 1 

6. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS:
6A. City Manager’s Report (Agenda Item) MOTION Pg. 2 
6B. Land Sale Policy Pg. 28 
6C Solicitation Ordinance  Pg. 36 
6D. CDBG Engineering Estimate  Pg. 39 
6E. MML Loss Control Findings Pg. 44 
6F. Art Fair Request Pg. 49 
6G. Roadside Market Concept Pg. 63 
6H. Property Assessment List Pg. 77 
6I. AT&T Term Sheet Pg. 81 
6J. Comcast Update Pg. 86 
6K. Police Department Monthly Report Pg. 87 
6L. Park Board Minutes, February 26, 2014 Pg. 96 
6M. Budget Materials 98 & Attached 

7. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:
7A. General Public Comments

8. COUNCIL BUSINESS:
8A. Land Sale Policy RESO Pg. 13 
8B. Solicitation Ordinance  RESO Pg. 14 
8C. CDBG Engineering Estimate RESO Pg. 17 
8D. Art Fair Request for Elms Park RESO Pg. 18 
8E-N. Commission Appointments RESO Pg. 18 
8O. Roadside Market Concept RESO Pg. 19 
8P. 2014 Summer Property Assessments RESO Pg. 20 
8Q. Budget Workshop DISC NA 

9. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:

10. REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS:

11. ADJOURNMENT: MOTION 

City Council Packet 1 April 28, 2014



City of Swartz Creek 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

Special Council Meeting of Monday, April 28, 2014 - 6:00 P.M. 

TO: Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members 
FROM: Adam Zettel, City Manager 
DATE: April 22, 2014 

OLD / ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS 
 MAJOR STREET FUND, TRAFFIC IMPROVEMENTS (See Individual Category)

 MORRISH ROAD BRIDGE PROJECT (No Change of Status)
The hearing with MDOT is scheduled for May 5, 2014.

The disagreement over the payment due, if any, for the bridge railing feature
continues. The city is refusing $16,000 in payment because the work quality is
terrible, out of specification, and likely to be a financial hardship in the future for
maintenance purposes. The contractor is disputing the complete withholding of
payment, and they indicated they would make one last final-and-best offer. As of
writing, no such offer has been received. Instead, they have submitted another
claim letter to the MDOT, seeking a regional hearing.  The 5% offer is at stake since
any decision made at the regional level is binding, but I stand by the prior decision
of the city council in this regard. Moving forward is the right thing to do.

 MILLER ROAD RESURFACING PROJECT (No Change of Status)
OHM is going to begin working on design engineering for Miller Road between
Morrish and Dye. When preliminary work is completed, we will be back to discuss
design options and costs. What follows is the background as written in the initial
report.

Miller Road is in bad shape east of Morrish. The county Traffic Improvement
Program (TIP) has scheduled funding to assist with these repairs for the summer of
2015 (we may do this over two years to better fund the project). The repairs would
include milling of asphalt and resurfacing. No reconstruction is proposed.

The section from Morrish to Elms would be redone as it is currently configured. The
section from Tallmadge Court to Dye Road is proposed to be done as three lanes
with bike lanes, to match what is done elsewhere on Miller. This configuration could
pose some issues, but there may be opportunities here as well.

The road is extremely wide east of Tallmadge Court. This section has shoulders and
ditching heading east until the Heritage Plaza area, where the road is curbed. The
road width for these distances exceeds 70 feet in some areas, and only 48 feet are
needed for the three land concept. This poses some obvious questions.

City Council Packet 2 April 28, 2014



One possible solution is to perform a road diet in which the curb (likely the south 
side only) is brought in a lane width or two to meet modern needs. The reasons this 
may be a good idea include: 
 
1. Traffic counts are much lower now with SPO operations and the extra lanes are 

simply not required. 
2. Some yards on the south side of Miller are virtually non-existent. An extra 20 

feet of yard could add much use value to the homes and future potential 
commercial. 

3. Shrinking the road will shrink on-going maintenance costs and future repair 
costs substantially. 

4. Shrinking the road would also lower speeds to match what is observed to the 
east in Flint Township and to the west. 

5. A realigned curb would allow for an off-street path that would connect Swartz 
Creek to the Genesee Valley Trail (I am looking into grant funding for this). 

 
Another option is to provide fewer lanes on the road and use hatch marks to 
eliminate travel near the shoulders. This is not recommended. It would not provide 
the benefits listed above, and it would look downright stupid.  
 
The last option is to mark the road to match the current configuration. The benefits 
noted above would not present themselves, but the status quo would be maintained.  
 
Cost estimates are as follows: 
 

Federal Funds Local Match Total Cost
Preliminary Engineering $71,553.00 $17,888.00 $89,441.00
Construction Engineering $0.00
Construction  $814,272.00 $203,568.00 $1,017,840.00
Total Project Cost $885,825.00 $221,456.00 $1,107,281.00

Federal Funds Local Match Total Cost
Preliminary Engineering $71,865.00 $17,966.00 $89,831.00
Construction Engineering $0.00
Construction  $817,825.00 $204,456.00 $1,022,281.00
Total Project Cost $889,690.00 $222,422.00 $1,112,112.00

Morrish to Elms

Tallmadge to Dye

 
 
Note: Construction engineering is included in the construction cost total, equating to 
about $130,000 per project. 

 
 MI-DEQ SCRAP TIRE GRANT PROJECT #1, PARKING LOTS (No Change of Status) 

We’ve received a notice of award for $136,904 from the MI-DEQ Scrap Tire Grant 
Program.  We applied for a couple of our parking lots, being Public Safety Building and 
the north alley lot behind Hank & Don’s.   
 

City Council Packet 3 April 28, 2014



The estimated total project costs have changed, along with some of the revenues. The 
changes include the water main addition, the alley hardscape, and the Meijer sidewalk. 
The breakdown on fund allocation is listed. The current budget includes approximately 
$170,000 of general fund money for this purpose. The additional funds are not yet 
budgeted. We will look to bring this up for the FY 2015 budget. The new estimates are 
as follows: 

Project Costs 
 Public Safety/Civic Drive $190,000 

Sidewalk $30,000 
Downtown Alley/Parking $65,000 
Alley Enhancement (includes lighting, landscaping, 
retaining wall, railing, and colored concrete) $65,000 
Water main Loop (for ductile iron water main) $80,000 
Design/Construction Engineering  $71,350 

Total Project Cost $501,350 

  Fund Sources 
 Scrap Tire Grant $136,000 

Meijer Contribution $10,000 

Local Match $354,446 

  Fund Impact 
 Total Cost $501,350 

Scrap Tire Grant $136,904 
Meijer $10,000 
CDBG (Pending) $29,000 
Water Fund $103,158 

General Fund $222,288 

 
This proposal will likely change again! We met with the engineer and some of the 
property owners downtown. Recent revelations based upon the survey and owner 
preferences indicate that the water main work will not be practical or desirable at this 
time. This means that the alley resurfacing may not be in the cards either. However, 
this will allow the city to focus on resurfacing Civic Drive or to add additional features 
to the public parking area downtown, such as landscaping or a dumpster enclosure for 
the users in the Hank and Don’s building. We may be able to free up a 3-4 parking 
spots while we are at it. More updates will follow as a more final engineering scope 
and estimate is prepared.  
 

 WINCHESTER STREETS (No Status Change) 
The streets in the village could be the next ‘big thing’ for the community. There will be 
a number of options here, but it will take some time to research these.  I hope to bring 
this up during the budget and begin engaging the city council and/or public after the 
new fiscal year starts.  

 
 WATER – SEWER ISSUES PENDING (See Individual Category) 

City Council Packet 4 April 28, 2014



 SEWER REHABILITATION PROGRAM (No Change of Status) 
We will begin work on the approved lining and inspection projects as soon as 
possible. A plan for the next five years will be forthcoming. 
 

 BEAR CREEK SANITARY SEWER AGREEMENT (No Change of Status) 
WWS advises that now that we have cleared the sanitary sewer concerns as it 
relates to the main that crosses the creek at the bridge, they’ll begin preparing 
agreements for transfer of the main to the County.  As soon as I get a draft of the 
agreement, I’ll set the matter up for discussion on the terms. 
 

 KWA (No Change of Status) 
The city enacted a pass-along increase beginning after the first of the year for the 
first phase of the debt retirement for the KWA.  Costs for future service are very 
uncertain and will undoubtedly rise much. Despite that, I believe that we need to 
look at local increases to support a local capital improvement program for aging 
infrastructure. This may not amount to much, but we need to start somewhere. If we 
simply pass along increase from the other authorities, we will not even be able to 
keep up with inflationary increases for operating.  
 
On the bright side, those continuing to purchase Detroit water may find rates tripling! 
This could encourage Oakland County to join the KWA or make rates in Genesee 
County even more competitive. I have attached an interesting Free Press Article on 
the matter. 
 

 STORM SEWER (No Change of Status) 
Mr. Svrcek has been working with the Michigan Department of Environmental 
Equality on some permitting issues that every city in the urban area of the county is 
dealing with. We are not thrilled with the expectations. What appears to be the 
heavy hand of the DEQ may put us out of the business of providing many basic 
services, or at least radically changing the way we do business. This could result in 
many new ordinances and expenses regulating a variety of practices including how 
we store road salt, where we can dump street sweepings, and how residents can 
discharge a pool. We will likely be addressing this in mid-summer, but we want to 
take our time due to the wide reaching effect that this could have on the community.  
 

 PERSONNEL:  POLICIES & PROCEDURES (Update) 
I have a couple templates that I am looking at with some of the supervisors. The police 
department has an extensive handbook that is updated regularly.  We expect to adopt 
a similar (but different) set of policies to cover all other employees. 

 
 CITY PROPERTY, 4438 MORRISH ROAD & THIRD STREET(Update) 

The tentative DDA budget includes some funds for demolition of these structures.  
Tom and I are looking at prices, unless there is an objection from the council.  The city 
council will need to approve any demolition actions and costs. If and when this is 
completed, the city can begin planning for potential uses on these properties.  

 
 LABOR CONTRACTS, SHARED SERVICES, BUILDING DEPARTMENT (Update) 

The administrative assistant that covered the clerical duties at the police department 
has been off on leave since early March. This has created a number of issues 
concerning the clerical coverage and duties for the police department and city hall. Our 

City Council Packet 5 April 28, 2014



short term solution has been to cover those duties and that location with administrative 
assistants on a rotating basis. However, this is becoming problematic for a number of 
reasons.  
 
Since the leave is likely to continue for some months, we have temporarily closed the 
clerical office of the police department. The police department and offices of the chief, 
detective, lieutenant, and patrol officers remain unchanged. For the time being, the 
phone lines for police and all clerical duties will be associated with and carried out at 
the city offices. We have already transferred all of the required hardware, software, 
and data to do this. A press release has also been sent to the Swartz Creek View.  
 
For the next couple months, we will monitor the situation. If things operate smoothly, 
staff may recommend keeping this arrangement, even when we are back to full 
staffing levels. We suspect that this setup will be more efficient on a number of levels, 
including the potential to remain open during the lunch period. Currently, both offices 
are closed from 12-1pm. We will keep you informed.  
 
The finance director vacancy issue has been solved.  However, there is another issue 
that may have shed some light on a new opportunity.  The city is down one AFSCME 
position through June.  The vacancy is the administrative assistant position at the 
public safety building. Covering both buildings has been a challenge for the remaining 
staff. One idea to deal with the problem is to close the public access to the public 
safety building and bring those services to city hall. I am working with Ms. Aguilar and 
Chief Clolinger to see if this concept can be implemented and what the costs and 
benefits of doing so would be.  
 
At this point, the idea would be to keep the chief, detective, and patrol positions at the 
public safety building and move the public access features and secretarial work to city 
hall. This would include the police department phone system and access to public 
safety databases. We believe this arrangement could have a lot of upside when we 
are back to full strength. The city would be able to cross train all positions and 
potentially cover the front desk area during lunch (right now, all buildings close 
between 12pm and 1pm). I will keep the city council informed. 
 
The potential for additional shared services with Mundy Township, perhaps with police 
services, is still a likely topic for future discussion.  

 

 FIRE DEPARTMENT: COST RECOVERY & APPARATUS (Update) 
The fire board is at the end of their bidding process for a new piece of equipment.  At 
this point, the council will be asked to support such a purchase. I expect the cost to the 
city to be between $170,000 and $200,000. This could be spread over 3-5 years 
without interfering with another purchase. Either way, there is a need to plan for 
ongoing equipment purchases, thereby requiring the city to contribute something each 
year in the form of a depreciation expense, equipment rental, or an equipment fund 
allocation. I suspect this amount needs to be about $30,000 annually. 

 
 SPRINGBROOK EAST & HERITAGE S.A.D. – VACANT LOTS (No Change of Status) 

Following are issues pending for the three Associations: 
 

SPRINGBROOK COLONY SPRINGBROOK EAST HERITAGE VILLAGE 

City Council Packet 6 April 28, 2014



Transfer Water, Sanitary 
Sewer, Storm Sewer to City. 

Seek Solution for 12 Vacant Lots 
Owned by City. 

Transfer Water, Sanitary 
Sewer, Storm Sewer, Streets 
to City.  Seek Solution for 5 
Vacant Lots Owned by City. 

 
We are live with maintenance of utilities in Springbrook. 
 
I will work on a land sale policy in the near future. A very rough draft is done, but this 
can probably wait till we finish our budget. 
 
Heritage Village utility and street transfers are in the works again. I will keep the 
council posted.  

 
 MEIJER COMMUNITY DONATION (Status) 

Regarding the Meijer Community Donation, we are still looking at several options for 
consideration, one of which is a sidewalk segment that would accompany the parking 
lot tire grant work we are looking to do. The costs for this may be a burden. I will be 
looking at options with Mr. Svrcek and bouncing those off the council and Meijer. 

 
 EVIP COMPETITIVE GRANT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM  (Update) 

A state senate committee is proposing to do away with EVIP and increase revenue 
sharing. This would certainly be a step in the right direction. As I indicated in an email 
this week, the increase will likely generate $10,000-$20,000 for the city. However, the 
MML indicates that our city is short $220,000 this year due to changes to revenue 
sharing disbursements, and we have lost about $1.6 million over the last 12 years.  
So, forgive me if I am not jumping for joy at this apparent change of direction. 

 
 
 WINCHESTER WOODS LOTS (No Change of Status) 

I suggest we delay any sales or negotiations until and land sale policy is adopted. 
Prior to the last meeting, staff notified the interested parties that a sale will not be 
forthcoming anytime soon. They do not appear to be in a hurry and will await the 
council’s decision.  
 
I want to take a harder look at the development of this area. Previously, the city 
considered an assessment that would provide drainage, curbs, gutters, road 
construction, street lights and sidewalks. The price per lot was absurd. I think the 
goal should be to make these lots buildable for quality homes. The city could 
probably achieve this with less intensive ditching and surfacing of the roads, sans 
the underground drainage system, lights, curbs, and sidewalks. This would 
drastically reduce the scope of the project.  
 
A sale of lots to an adjacent property owner could compromise the success of any 
special assessment for improvements and the ability to use these lots for single 
family homes.  
 

 NEWSLETTER (Update) 
The newsletter is being printed as I write this, and should arrive to occupants within our 
city shortly.  
 

 SEWER RATES (No Change of Status)  

City Council Packet 7 April 28, 2014



They are going up. I suggest we look at increasing ours to cover our costs and any 
projected deficit that is apparent.  Unless there is such an objection, staff will plan to 
do so as the anticipated budget progresses.  
 

 RENTAL REGISTRATION AND INSPECTIONS (No Change of Status) 
We have begun preparing for a rental registration program. One of the first steps will be 
to adopt the property maintenance code. Now that this is done, I will be working with 
Mr. Johnson and the council to begin developing a program that is compatible with our 
community goals.  
 

 WINSHALL PAVILION (Update) 
Repairs have been ordered using the insurance provider’s contractor. We have already 
received a check for the estimated repairs. The contractor, who was selected by our 
insurance carrier, is taking their sweet time. In fact, I have requested another 
contractor. We have been waiting for about a month, and they have not even affirmed 
they can do the job. This may take a little longer than anticipated. I have passed along 
some displeasure at the choice of contractor to our insurance provider. 
 

 MML LOSS CONTROL RESPONSE (Update) 
The Michigan Municipal League provides workers’ compensation, property, and general 
liability insurance for the city. Each year, they review claims, coverage, and risk with 
city staff and deliver a report with their findings. Their findings, along with some 
recommendations, are attached.  
 
As noted, the city has a great claim history in all categories. There is nothing 
remarkable to report. However, there are a few recommendations. They include 
employee training, policy development, and facility management elements. All of these 
recommendations are reasonable and should be something that city staff can 
accommodate without anything more than a nominal expense. My responses are 
noted. 
 

 OTHER COMMUNICATIONS & HAPPENINGS (Update)  
The only additional communication of note is a proposal on behalf of AT&T.  They 
lease space on the cell tower on Elms Road, north of the creek.  They own the tower 
and use it for cellular communications.  
 
Anyways, the city is constantly being asked to sell interests in these leases for lump 
sum payments. In essence, companies ask the city if it is willing to give up lease 
revenues for a lesser amount than is guaranteed. An example would be, “we will give 
you $100 today for a lease that pays $15 a year for the next ten years.” In theory, this 
may be a good deal for the private sector, since investments could take the up-front 
sum and generate as much or more revenues. However, our investments return less 
than 1% a year.  
 
This is a similar option. AT&T is asking for exactly this type of arrangement OR for a 
decrease in rent in exchange for 36 months of guaranteed rent at a discounted rate. 
They indicate that they may eliminate this tower location and this offer would 
guarantee revenues where they could otherwise disappear. Frankly, it is possible that 
this could happen, but I doubt it. If AT&T can eliminate this tower, then they are 

City Council Packet 8 April 28, 2014



probably destined to do so in or around this 36 month timeframe anyways. I don’t see 
the rental savings changing that. The current lease amount is $1,469 a month with a 
20% escalator every 5 years. The impact on the general fund to take this offer would 
be about $5,600 in the first year. 
 
Summarily, I plan to let this go unless any member of the council chooses to discuss it 
further. At best, we continue to collect higher rents for the foreseeable future. At worst, 
we lose an untenable income stream a bit early.  
 

 BOARDS & COMMISSIONS (See Individual Category)  
 PLANNING COMMISSION (Update) 

The planning commission reviewed the land sale policy at April meeting as 
requested by the city council.  A couple minor changes were made. This is back in 
front of the city council at this meeting due to a high demand for city lots in 
Springbrook East.  
 

 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (Update) 
The DDA met again in April. It appears there will be over $100,000 of revenues in 
the DDA budget this year. This amount is unprecedented. In fact, they have not had 
any tax revenues in about five years. With the new revenues looking more secure, 
the board amended their budget to include an additional contribution to the public 
safety parking lot and potential demolitions of houses on city owned property 
downtown. Details are in the city budget. 
 

 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (No Change of Status) 
The ZBA is not up to much lately. Their annual meeting was held on March 19, 
2014. All officers were reinstated. 
 

 PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION  (No Change of Status) 
This commission is very active recently.  They met on February 26th at 6pm at city 
hall to discuss a number of issues.  Though there is not much of a budget, they will 
continue to work on one, if not two, tree grants as they have in years past.  They are 
also working with some school groups for some spring volunteer clean up 
opportunities. Ultimately, they are hoping that there could be some funds available 
for rehabilitation work this summer. I indicated that the city could apply for a 
Department of Natural Resources Recreation Passport Grant and match any such 
funds with up to $30,000 in state funds. The downside is that such a grant would be 
for the 2015 season. They feel this may still be the way to proceed. The work could 
include sprucing up Elms park bathrooms, ball diamonds, forestry, trails, and related 
work. 

 
NEW BUSINESS / PROJECTED ISSUES & PROJECTS 
 
 LAND SALE POLICY(Resolution) 

The city council reviewed a draft land sale policy recently and deferred a detailed 
review to the planning commission. The planning commission reviewed the policy and 
recommends approval with minor adjustments, including the elimination of superfluous 
language regarding development agreements. The commission agreed with the intent 
of the policy and felt it provided sound guidance with the right amount of flexibility to 

City Council Packet 9 April 28, 2014



effectively and efficiently transfer surplus city properties. The policy is back in front of 
the city council for approval. In the interest of being able to move forward with the sale 
of developable lots, I recommend the council approve this. Note that this is a set of 
guidelines and that such policies can be changed rather quickly should the council feel 
overly constrained or uncertain of requirements.  
 

 SOLICITATION ORDINANCE (Resolution) 
The city council indicated that some changes were definitely needed to our solicitation 
ordinance based upon reviews by the attorney.  However, there were some questions 
about how such an ordinance would impact non-commercial efforts (including volunteer 
groups, political groups, and school fundraisers). There was also some concern about 
the complexity of the draft ordinance and whether private associations had additional 
solicitation regulation rights.  
 
Mr. Gildner has submitted a revised draft that I believe takes all concerns into account. 
He also included a letter that addresses his opinion on the ability of home owner 
associations to regulate or control solicitation. I know the council prefers action when 
possible, so I included this as an ordinance amendment instead of a discussion item. 
Obviously, more deliberation and/or drafting is still possible.  
 

 CDBG ENGINEERING ESTIMATE (Resolution) 
The aesthetic improvements to the alley and Morrish Road street scape have been 
separated from the parking lot improvement bid.  The reason for this is to separate the 
expenses of the CDBG grant and the other work.  If the CDBG project is included in the 
parking improvements, then all federal requirements, including higher wages and 
reporting, apply to all project elements. This would have created a lot of paper work and 
increased costs.   
 
Since the projects are separated for construction, they are also separated in regards to 
preliminary and construction engineering. I have included the estimate from Rowe 
Professional Services for these services, and I have also included the cost estimate for 
construction. Note that the DDA has opted to cover up to $20,000 for these 
improvements, in addition to the $29,100 of CDBG funds. However, engineering in this 
fiscal year does not have a funding mechanism.  As such, I prepared a resolution to 
cover such expenses as part of the parking lot project.  If contributions from the DDA 
and CDBG exceed expenses, part of the DDA contribution can offset the parking 
improvements occurring after July 1. I can better explain this at the meeting if the 
council wishes to hear my beautiful voice for a while.   
 

 ART FAIR REQUEST FOR ELMS PARK (Resolution) 
The local non-profit that runs the art guild is looking to pick up where the Kiwanis Club 
left off and hold an art fair in Elms Park. They are essentially planning the same event 
as the Kiwanis held, and they are requesting permission to use the park for the 
weekend of September 13-14. There are no reservation conflicts at this point in time, 
and I see no reason why this cannot be done.  
 
I know there was some concern about allowing full-park use of any park facility by 
community groups. At some point, this could become unmanageable or unfair unless a 
policy is created. I think that staff can work with the park board and city council to 

City Council Packet 10 April 28, 2014



create such usage guidelines. For the time being, we are able to manage the requests 
we get (this is the only one for 2014) so I think we should proceed.  
 

 COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS (Resolutions) 
In March, Mr. Todd Beedy was appointed to the DDA for the remainder of Mr. Hull’s 
term. Unfortunately, that term ended on March 31, 2014. The fix? Reappoint him for the 
next term. 
 
The mayor is also recommended Mr. Robert Plumb for the alternate position on the 
Zoning Board of Appeals. All other appointments are extensions of terms for existing 
appointees.  

 
 ROADSIDE MARKET CONCEPT (Resolutions) 

The Swartz Creek DDA, with support from the city, has operated a farmers market 
nearly every year since the mid-2000s. Some years, the market has been strong, and 
other years it has not been. The last couple years have not been very good, especially 
with key vendors opting to go to other markets like Grand Blanc. Since the market has 
always had a cost to it, the obvious question before the DDA and city is whether to 
continue to financially support it.  
 
Options that we have investigated include: 

1. Funding the market at a high level, perhaps over $10,000 a year, to see if it 
can be revived. 

2. Dropping the market altogether. 
3. Supporting the market like we have in the last few years, with similar results 

expected. 
4. Allowing the market to be run by vendors, at little or no cost. 

 
Option 4 has been recommended by the DDA. This would essentially enable the city to 
permit vendors to sell from their stands at a time of their choosing. They would need to 
follow vending rules and get a background check, similar to park concession/vending 
rules elsewhere.  
 
From a practical standpoint, this will probably result in one or two of the staple vendors 
returning on Sundays in an unsupervised fashion. There may be some volunteers that 
will assist in marketing or operating the market no matter what form it takes, but this 
strategy has not worked out well in the past.  

 
 ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS: WATER-SEWER-WEEDS & SPECIAL (Resolution) 

Included with tonight’s agenda is a resolution to assess delinquent water, sewer, 
weeds and special assessments (Heritage and Springbrook East).  Included is a static 
list of outstanding delinquents.  This list may change before the tax bills go out, 
depending on payments we get in.   

 
 BUDGET WORKSHOP (Discussion) 

The budget situation is more developed, and staff has done some research on potential 
alternates for known issues, especially in the waste fund.  Changes have been made to 
reflect the staff-recommended course of action. Lively discussion shall ensue…..  

 

City Council Packet 11 April 28, 2014



Council Questions, Inquiries, Requests and Comments    
   

 Additional Lighting, Miller – Fairchild Intersection.  We are back trying to get a review 
by Consumers Energy. 

 Parkridge Parkway “No Parking Signs”.  They are missing in the back phase near 
Hickory Lane.  We are working to replace them, but it will likely be when the ground 
thaws. 

 

City Council Packet 12 April 28, 2014



 
City of Swartz Creek 

RESOLUTIONS  
Special Council Meeting, Monday, April 28, 2014, 6:00 P.M. 

 
Resolution No. 140428-4A  MINUTES – APRIL 14, 2014 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Minutes of the Special Council 
Meeting held Monday April 14, 2014, to be circulated and placed on file. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For:_______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________  

 
Resolution No. 140428-5A AGENDA APPROVAL 

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as presented / printed / 
amended for the Special Council Meeting of April 28, 2014, to be circulated and placed 
on file. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 140428-6A CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the City Manager’s Report of April 28, 
2014, to be circulated and placed on file. 
  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 140428-8A LAND SALE POLICY 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek City Council approve the land sale policy as included 
herein for use by the city staff and council. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 

City Council Packet 13 April 28, 2014



Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution No. 140428-8B SOLICITATION ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek ordain: 

 
CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 414 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 12 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 

SWARTZ CREEK TO REGULATE PEDDLERS AND SOLICITORS. 
 
THE CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK ORDAINS: 
 
Section 1. The City hereby amends Section 12 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Swartz 

Creek to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 12-1. Definitions. 
 
Person. An individual, organization, group, association, partnership, corporation, trust, business entity or 

any combination of the above.  
 
Commercial solicitation.  Direct and personal communication in the course of a trade or business 

reasonably intended to result in a sale. 
 
Sale.  An activity creating an obligation to transfer property or services for a valuable consideration. 
 
Solicitor.  
 
(1) A person who engages in commercial solicitation when traveling either by foot, automobile, motor 

truck, or other means of conveyance from place to place, from house to house or from street to 
street.  

 
(2) The word solicitor shall include but not be limited to the words canvassers, peddler, and hawker. 

 
 Sec. 12-2. License required. 
 
 No person shall be a solicitor and/or solicit in the City of Swartz Creek without first obtaining a license 
therefor. An application for a license shall be made to the City Clerk.  In the event that the application is made 
by an organization, group, association, partnership, corporation, trust, business entity or any combination of the 
above, an application must be made for each agent or employee who will be engaging in the act of soliciting.  
 
 Sec. 12-3. Exceptions to license. 
 
 The following activities are exempt from this chapter: 
 

(1) Solicitations made to a congregation or group in attendance at one location and made by the person 

City Council Packet 14 April 28, 2014



or organization inviting the individuals composing the congregation or group; 
 
(2) Solicitations made over the radio, television or telephone; 
 
(3) Any communication by an organization soliciting contributions solely from persons who are 

members of the organization at the time of the solicitation; 
 
(4) Any solicitation pursuant to a political candidacy or ballot issue qualified pursuant to "The Michigan 

Election Law" or "The School Code of 1976" as they are amended from time to time; 
 
(5) Any peddler traveling on an established route at the request, express or implied, of their customers; 
 
(6) Salespersons calling on clients, customers or business establishments with whom they have 

established business relationships at the time of the solicitation; 
 
(7) The distribution of handbills or leaflets where the individual distributing them does not seek or 

accept payments, orders or contributions; 
 
(8) A person handling vegetables, fruits or perishable farm products at any established city farmers' 

market; 
 
(9) A person who is not a business or merchant, but who engages in a garage sale whereby they are 

selling their own items from their household. 
 
 Sec. 12-4. License Application. 
 
 A license application filed hereunder shall furnish the following information:  
 

(1) Name and description of the applicant. 
 
(2) Permanent home address and full local address of the applicant. 
 
(3) A brief description of the nature of the solicitation contemplated. 
 
(4) If the applicant is an employee, the name and address of the employer, together with the credentials 

establishing the exact employer/employee relationship. 
 
(5) The length of time the applicant intends to solicit. 
 
(6) The place where the wares, merchandise, services, items of personal property or real property are 

located, manufactured or produced and the proposed method of delivery.  
 
(7) One photograph of the applicant, it being from the applicant's driver's license or identification card. 
 
(8) The applicant's social security number. 
 
(9) A statement as to whether or not the applicant has been convicted of any felony, misdemeanor or 

violation of any municipal ordinance, the nature of the offense and the punishment or penalty 
assessed therefor. This statement shall be accompanied by a release allowing the City, including 
the City police department to conduct a criminal background check.  

 

City Council Packet 15 April 28, 2014



Sec. 12-5. Administrative fee and/or license fee. 
 
An applicant shall pay a reasonable administrative processing fee and/or license fee set by resolution of 
the City Council when submitting his or her license application. 
 
Sec. 12-6. Issuance, possession, and presentation of license. 
 
Upon approval of the license application, the City Clerk shall issue a license and license identification 
card including the name, address, and photo of the licensed person. The licensed person shall visibly 
display on their person at all times the license identification card when conducting activities permitted by 
the license. 
 
Sec. 12-7. License revocation. 
 
The City may suspend or revoke a license for violation of this article after reasonable notice and 
opportunity to be heard. The City may suspend on an emergency basis, without hearing, any license 
issued to the solicitor when it specifies in the notice of emergency suspension, the reasons and grounds 
indicating the violation of this article which constitutes the emergency. The notice shall set forth that 
within 48 hours, at a designated time and place, a hearing shall be held on whether the license shall be 
permanently suspended or revoked. 
 
Sec. 12-8. Prohibited activities. 
 
The following acts or activities shall be prohibited: 
 
(1) Prohibited areas. No solicitor shall obstruct any street, alley, sidewalk or driveway.  
 
(2) Litter. No solicitor shall litter any street, alley, sidewalk, driveway, or private property in the City.  
 
(3) Curb service prohibited. No solicitor shall operate or maintain any stand, vehicle, store or place of 

solicitation on or near any highway. No solicitor shall be permitted to use the streets, alleys, lanes or 
public places of the City for soliciting or to use any stands, stores or other places of transaction in 
any manner that requires the person wishing to participate in a transaction, when engaged in the 
transaction, to stand within the limits of the streets, highways, alleys or public places of the City.  

 
(4) Prohibition of entry upon private property expressly requesting no solicitation. No solicitor shall enter 

upon and/or call upon a place of residence or business within the City of Swartz Creek after having 
been expressly notified by the occupant of the place of residence or business that no solicitation is 
desired, or if the place of residence or business visibly displays on its property and/or premises a 
sign indicating "no soliciting", "no solicitation" and/or other language specifically conveying the 
message that no soliciting is desired.  

 
(5) Prohibition of creation of nuisance. No solicitor shall threaten or annoy any resident of the City in the 

course of their solicitation or in any way engage in any conduct which is or would tend to create a 
nuisance.  

 
Sec. 12-9. Hours of operation. 
 
Soliciting may take place within the City between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. or sunset, 
whichever occurs earlier.  
 
Sec. 12-10. Penalty. 

City Council Packet 16 April 28, 2014



 
Any person or persons violating any of the provisions of this article shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and 
upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine of not more than $500.00 plus costs of prosecution 
or by imprisonment for not more than 90 days or by both fine and costs and imprisonment in the 
discretion of the court. 
 
Section 3. Effective date. 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after publication. 
 

At a regular meeting of the City Council of Swartz Creek held on the __________ day of 
_____________, 2014, ________________ moved for adoption of the foregoing ordinance and 
________________ supported the motion. 
 
Voting for: 
Voting against: 
The Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 
 

_________________________________ 
David Krueger 
Mayor 

 
__________________________________ 
Juanita Aguilar 
City Clerk 

 
 CERTIFICATION 
 
The foregoing is a true copy of Ordinance No. _____ which was enacted by the Swartz Creek City 
Council at a regular meeting held on the ________ day of __________________, 2014. 
 

_________________________________ 
Juanita Aguilar 
City Clerk  

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 140428-8C CDBG ENGINEERING  

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek enter into an agreement with Rowe Professional 
Services of Flint, Michigan for design and construction engineering services related to 
the CDBG funded portion of the public alley/streetscape project on Morrish Road, in an 
amount not to exceed $4,335 plus 15% contingency, work to be performed in 
accordance with the professional service scope letter attached and requirements of 
the Genesse County Metropolitan Planning Commission CDBG program and further, 
direct the mayor and city clerk to execute any and all necessary documents on behalf 
of the city, funds to be appropriated from the appropriate department of the General 

City Council Packet 17 April 28, 2014



Fund (101) as required for grant purposes. 
 
Be it further resolved that the City Council direct the staff to independently account 
for and recover potential expenses related to this project through the GCMPC CDBG 
program, and amount programmed to be $29,100. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 140428-8D ART FAIR REQUEST FOR ELMS PARK 
  

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

WHEREAS, the Swartz Creek Area Art Guild, a local not-for-profit organization, 
desires to hold an art fair in Swartz Creek for the purpose of raising funds to support 
the non-profit’s activities, and 

 
WHEREAS, the previous location for a similar outdoor event is Elms Park; and  

 
WHEREAS, the event would consist of a set-up day on Friday, September 12th and 
artist vending activities Saturday, September 13th and Sunday the 14th. The event will 
include approximately fifty artists, a food vendor, pavilion use, vendor and patron 
parking, and overnight camping by the boy scouts (security); and  

 
WHEREAS, the city may allow exclusive use (Ord. 11-50), as well as overnight 
‘sleeping’ within a city park (City Ordinances 11-49) with the written permission of the 
city manager.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Swartz Creek City Council approve 
the exclusive use of Elms Park for an art fair on September 12-14, 2014, conditional 
upon the Swartz Creek Area Art Guild providing insurance for the event naming the 
city and the event as additional insured parties. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the park fees for the use of park pavilions shall be 
waived.   
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 140428-8E-N COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council concur with the Mayor and City Council 
appointments as follows: 

 
  

#140428-8E MAYOR APPOINTMENT:   ROBERT PLUMB 
   Zoning Board of Appeals, Alternate 

City Council Packet 18 April 28, 2014



   Remainder of Three-Year Term Expiring June 30, 2016 
 

#1140428-8F MAYOR APPOINTMENT:   TODD BEEDY 
   Downtown Development Authority 
   Four-Year Term Expiring March 31, 2018 
 

#140428-8G MAYOR RE-APPOINTMENT:   RODNEY GARDNER 
   Downtown Development Authority 

Four-Year Term Expiring March 31, 2018 
 
#140428-8H MAYOR RE-APPOINTMENT:   PAUL BUECHE 

   Downtown Development Authority 
Remainder of Four-Year Term Expiring November 30, 2017 

 
#140428-8I MAYOR RE-APPOINTMENT:   ERNIE ECKERDT 

   Downtown Development Authority 
Remainder of Four-Year Term Expiring November 30, 2017 

 
#130624-8J MAYOR RE-APPOINTMENT:   DOUG STEPHENS 

   Zoning Board of Appeals  
Three-Year Term expiring June 30, 2017 

 
#140428-8K MAYOR RE-APPOINTMENT:   RONALD SMITH 

   Zoning Board of Appeals  
Three-Year Term expiring June 30, 2017 

 
#140428-8L MAYOR RE-APPOINTMENT:   CARL CONNER 

   Planning Commission 
Three-Year Term expiring June 30, 2017 

 
#140428-8M MAYOR RE-APPOINTMENT:   DOUG STEPHENS 

   Planning Commission  
Three-Year Term expiring June 30, 2017 

 
#140428-8N MAYOR RE-APPOINTMENT:   JOE EDGERTON 

   Board of review  
Three-Year Term expiring June 30, 2017 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 140428-8O ROADSIDE MARKET CONCEPT 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek approve the concept of a Roadside Market, to be held 
on the vacant city property located on the north-west corner of Morrish Road and 
Fortino Road, and direct the city staff to organize and permit such activities in 
accordance with the attached guidelines and applications, subject to final DDA and 
council budgetary appropriations. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 

City Council Packet 19 April 28, 2014



Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution No. 140428-8P ASSESSMENTS: DELINQUENT WATER – SEWER – 

WEEDS & SPECIAL 
  

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

I Move the City of Swartz Creek direct the Treasurer to prepare an audit of all 
outstanding debts owed to the City for delinquent water, sewer, mowing, sidewalk 
repairs and special assessments related to Heritage Village and Springbrook East 
Condominium Associations and further, to cause such debts to be assessed against 
the property owner of record, in accordance with City Ordinance and State Statute, 
said debts to be placed against the summer 2014 tax collection roll. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 

City Council Packet 20 April 28, 2014



 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
SWARTZ CREEK, MICHIGAN 

MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL MEETING 
DATE 4/14/2014 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Mayor Krueger in the Swartz Creek City 
Council Chambers, 8083 Civic Drive. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
Councilmembers Present:  Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath, 

Shumaker. 
 
Councilmembers Absent:   None. 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Adam Zettel, City Clerk Juanita Aguilar, 
  
Others Present: Tommy Butler, Denny Pinkston, Bob Plumb, Eric 

Merriam, Todd Beedy, Ron Schultz, Marty Johnson, 
Boots Abrams, Mr. C.G. Essex. 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Resolution No. 140414-01       (Carried) 
 

Motion Councilmember Hurt 
  Second by Councilmember Gilbert 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council hereby approve the Minutes of the Regular 
Council Meeting, held Monday, March 24, 2014 to be circulated and placed on file. 

 
YES: Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams. 

 NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
Resolution No. 140414-02       (Carried) 
 

Motion Councilmember Gilbert 
  Second by Councilmember Hurt 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council hereby approve the Minutes of the Special 
Council Meeting, held Monday, April 7, 2014 to be circulated and placed on file. 

 
YES: Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert. 

 NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  

 

City Council Packet 21 April 28, 2014



Resolution No. 140414-03       (Carried) 
       

Motion by Councilmember Hicks 
Second by Councilmember Shumaker 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as amended, for the 
Special Council Meeting of April 14, 2014, to be circulated and placed on file. 

 
YES: Hurt, Krueger, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried.  

 
REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
  Resolution No. 140414-04       (Carried) 
 

 Motion by Councilmember Shumaker 
Second by Councilmember Hurt 
 

 I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the City Manager’s Report of April 
14, 2014, to be circulated and placed on file. 

  
YES: Krueger, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

Discussion Ensued. 
 
MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC 
 
Marty Johnson, Mundy Twp/ Swartz Creek Building Inspector, introduced himself to the 
council.  Mr. Johnson stated that the transition has been smooth so far.  Mr. Johnson 
stated that if anyone needed to get ahold of him, they could call the City offices and he 
would return the call usually within a few minutes.  Mr. Johnson stated that he really enjoys 
working for the City.  
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
Fire Apparatus Presentation 
  
Eric Merriam, Assistant Fire Chief, apologized for the Fire Chief not being able to make it 
as he is in Las Vegas dealing with the estate of his parents.  Mr. Merriam spoke about 
what the Fire Department is doing to try to get new equipment.    

 
Special Land Use- Urgent Medical Care Facility 
 

  Resolution No.  140414-05a      
  

City Council Packet 22 April 28, 2014



 
   Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams  
   Second by Councilmember Hurt 
 

WHEREAS, a special land use application was received by the city to place an 
urgent medical care facility in a commercial structure, located at 7070 Miller Road, 
zoned General Business District, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on this matter and 
recommended approval of the use to the city council with one condition. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the Swartz Creek City Council, finding the 
application for a special land use meets all of the general and specific requirements 
for approval, hereby approves the special land use for an urgent medical care 
center to be located at 7070 Miller Road, parcel number 58-36-576-012, conditioned 
upon the following: 
 

1. Hours of operation shall be limited to 10:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. 
 

Resolution No. 140414-05b      (Carried) 
 
 Motion by Councilmember Hurt 
 Second by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams  

 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council amend the Urgent Care resolution, striking 
the condition for approval.  
 
 YES: Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt, Krueger. 
 NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
  Resolution No. 140414-05c     (Amended) 
 
   Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams  
   Second by Councilmember Hurt 
 

WHEREAS, a special land use application was received by the city to place an 
urgent medical care facility in a commercial structure, located at 7070 Miller Road, 
zoned General Business District, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on this matter and 
recommended approval of the use to the city council with one condition. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the Swartz Creek City Council, finding the 
application for a special land use meets all of the general and specific requirements 
for approval, hereby approves the special land use for an urgent medical care 
center to be located at 7070 Miller Road, parcel number 58-36-576-012. 

 
    

City Council Packet 23 April 28, 2014



YES: Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
Heritage Lot Sales Affirmation 
 
 Resolution No. 140414-06       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Porath 
  Second by Councilmember Hurt 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek City Council passed resolution 131014-09 to 
offer certain properties in Springbrook East and Heritage Village condominiums for 
sale to specific interests, based upon certain contingencies, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the council subsequently passed resolution 131028-07 to sell five lots 
in Heritage Village condominium to three buyers, and; 

 
WHEREAS, City Charter Section13.3(b)(2) requires a land sale resolution to be 
passed in its final form and placed on file for 30 days for public inspection before 
any sale can be executed, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the city council subsequently rescinded these lot sales and directed 
staff to begin the sale process over, with an understanding that conditions were not 
required and a previous offer was agreed to by the same council, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the potential buyer of two lots described as parcels 58-30-651-092 and 
58-30-651-091, the buyers being Jason and LeAnne Minto, have withdrawn their 
interest in those lots, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek City Council approved the sale of two lots to 
Mr. F. Jack Belzer for a price of $1,734 each, such lots described as parcel 
identification numbers 58-30-651-093 and 58-30-651-094, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek City Council approves the sale of one lot to 
Mr. Theodore R Kramer Jr. and Ms. Ruth A. Kramer for a price of $1,734, said lot 
described with parcel identification number 58-30-651-099, and; 
 
WHEREAS, that the resolution and sale, by quit claim deeds, was made available 
to the public by the city clerk for a period of no less than 30 days, and no comments 
were received. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the transfer of said parcels is affirmed by 
the City of Swartz Creek City Council and the Mayor and Clerk are directed to 
execute corresponding quit claim deeds.  
 
Discussion Took Place. 

 
  YES: Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath, Shumaker. 
  NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

City Council Packet 24 April 28, 2014



Charitable Gaming License- Hometown Days 
 
 Resolution No. 140414-07       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Hurt 
  Second by Councilmember Shumaker 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek hosts an annual event, Hometown Days, each 
June for the purposes of promoting the community and enhancing the quality of life 
in the city, and; 
 
WHEREAS, certain activities of the Swartz Creek Hometown Days, Inc. nonprofit 
organization require a charitable gaming license through the Charitable Gaming 
Commission of the Michigan Lottery. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, I Move the City of Swartz Creek, of Genesee County, requests 
that the Swartz Creek Hometown Days, Inc. be recognized as a nonprofit 
organization operating in the community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable 
gaming license. 

 
Discussion Ensued. 
 
  YES: Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams. 
  NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
MDOT Engineering Contracts- Miller Road 
 
 Resolution No. 140414-08       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
  Second by Councilmember Hurt 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek approved a contract with OHM Advisors on 
February 10, 2014 for preliminary engineering of two segments of Miller Road, from 
Morrish Road to Elms Road and from Tallmadge Court to Dye Road, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the engineering service of these road segments is funded primarily by 
the Federal Highway Administration as administered by the Michigan Department of 
Transportation, thereby requiring the City to meet certain federal standards and 
obligations. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, I Move the City of Swartz Creek enter into agreements with 
the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT), copies of which are attached 
hereto, for the preliminary engineering of Miller Road from Morrish Road to Elms 
Road, as well as from Tallmadge Court to Dye Road, funding through the major 
street fund and the transportation improvement program as previously approved by 
the city council, and further, direct the Mayor and Clerk to execute the agreement 
on behalf of the City. 

City Council Packet 25 April 28, 2014



Discussion Took Place. 
 
  YES: Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert. 
  NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
Police Vehicle Auction 
 
 Resolution No. 140414-09       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Hicks 
  Second by Councilmember Hurt 
 

I Move the City of Swartz Creek, finding the 2007 Dodge Charger police cruiser to 
be beyond its useful life for the execution of safe and efficient police activities, 
hereby direct and authorize the Chief of Police to auction this vehicle and related 
appurtenances (listed below) by means of the Bidcorp.com service. 
 

1. Setina “Body Guard” vehicle push bumper 
2. Setina “Body Guard” vehicle partition 
3. Whelen “Edge LFL” series light bar with federal control box model 

SW400SS 
4. Whelen siren model SA315P federal control box model PA300 
5. Two (2) Jotto center radio consoles 
6. Computer paper rolls (x13): Box of twelve 8 7/16” white paper rolls 

 
Discussion Ensued. 
 
  YES: Hurt, Krueger, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks. 
  NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
Swartz Creek Women’s Club Presentation 
 
Boots Abrams, representing the Swartz Creek Women’s Club, presented $1000 to Officer 
Szmansky for the Cops in the Park Program.  Ms. Abrams thanked Ofc. Szmansky for 
coming to the chili dinner and helping raise the money.   
 
Budget Workshop 
 
City Manager Zettel went through the draft  budget. 
 
MEETING OPEN TO PUBLIC: 
 
Todd Beedy, 3445 Morrish, as a business owner and president of the Chamber of 
Commerce, wanted to thank the Council for their decision on the hours of operation for the 
new Urgent Care facility.  Mr. Beedy spoke about the Chamber of Commerce lunch 
coming up on Tuesday.  Mr. Beedy spoke about partnering with other Genesee County 
Chambers of Commerce in an effort to educate the public on the new Personal Property 
laws.  Mr. Beedy encouraged councilmembers to bring forth ideas on how the Chamber 

City Council Packet 26 April 28, 2014



can help the city. 
 
C.G. Essex, 4935 Ita Ct, thanked Councilmember Hicks for the pinwheel garden in her 
yard.  Mr. Essex thanked the Women’s Club for their contributions to the wellbeing of the 
children in the city.   Mr. Essex spoke about a website that he invited the councilmembers 
to visit.   
 
REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
Councilmember Porath asked how close the city was to taking credit/debit payments.  Mr. 
Porath stated that he feels it is something that the city should do.  Mr. Porath spoke about 
the City of Flint using water from the Flint River and asked if that was a backup to the 
Karegnondi Water System.   
 
Councilmember Shumaker spoke about the paperwork that he received for filing a 
candidate petition for the August election.   
 
Councilmember Hicks encouraged everyone to come plant their pinwheels in the pinwheel 
garden in her front yard.   
 
Councilmember Gilbert spoke about the garbage and recycling.   
 
Mayor Krueger thanked everyone for paying such careful attention during the long 
meeting.   
 
Adjournment 
 

Resolution No. 140414-10       (Carried) 
 

Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams  
Second by Councilmember Hurt 

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek adjourn the Regular Session of the City Council 
meeting at 8:50 p.m. 

 
 YES: Unanimous Voice Vote. 

                      NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
 
 
 
___________________________    ______________________ 
David A. Krueger, Mayor            Juanita Aguilar, City Clerk 

City Council Packet 27 April 28, 2014



CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK POLICY FOR 

DISPOSITION OF CITY-OWNED REAL PROPERTY 

BACKGROUND 

The City of Swartz Creek is the owner of real property which is used for various purposes. As public 
service needs change, the needs, liabilities, and benefits of owning such property may change. This 
requires review of the site’s potential for future public use and its potential economic benefit to the city. 
 
PURPOSE 
It is the purpose of this policy to: 

 
A. Establish a procedure by which unused or marginally used city-owned real estate is reviewed 

for its potential public use and for designating parcels for lease or sale; and 
 

B. Provide guidance for the auction, negotiated sale, or exchange of city-owned real estate; and 
 

C.   Establish the conditions under which city-owned real property should be leased. 
 
POLICY 
It is the city's policy to manage its real estate assets so that they may properly carry out public needs 
which rely on these assets. It is not the city's policy to speculate in real estate. The city council will review 
all city-owned real estate not adequately used for municipal purposes and determine the appropriate use 
of the property. Those properties needed for municipal purposes may be so designated. If a property is 
not needed for public use within the foreseeable future, it may be made available for lease or sale, or if it 
will be needed at a future time, it may be suitable for lease in the interim. Those properties not required 
for municipal use, including those acquired because the owner failed to pay taxes, or designated for lease 
may be designated for sale or reserved to be exchanged for other land the city needs. The city shall 
optimize the sale price or lease rent from city-owned real estate based on relevant factors that may 
include: 

 
A. An appraisal of the property which is no more than six months old at the time the sales 

agreement is presented to the city council. 
 

B. Prevailing economic conditions and recent applicable trends. 
 

C. Any special benefits to accrue from the sale or lease. 
 
Discounts will not be negotiated unless a need or circumstance is recognized by city council resolution 
before negotiation, setting forth the justification for it. The purpose of this is to demonstrate to the 
community that the city is not making a gift of public assets. 
 
The Swartz Creek City Charter places limitations on the sale of property as follows: 
 
Section 5.12. - Restrictions on powers of the council. 
 

(a) The Council shall not have the power to make any contract with or give any official position to 
any person who is in default to the city. Further, the Council shall not have the power to sell any 
park, cemetery or any part thereof, except where such park is not required under an official 
master plan of the city. 

 
Section 13.3. – Limitations on contractual power 

(b) The city shall not have power to purchase, sell, lease, or dispose of any real estate unless: 

City Council Packet 28 April 28, 2014



(1) Such action is approved by the affirmative roll call vote of five or more members of the 
Council, and unless, 

(2) In the case of real estate owned by it, the resolution authorizing the sale, lease, or 
disposal thereof shall be completed in the manner in which it is to be finally passed and 
has remained on file with the Clerk for public inspection for thirty days before the final 
adoption or passage thereof, and unless,  

(3) When the proposition is to sell any park, cemetery, or any part thereof, except when 
such park is not required under an official master plan of the city, the proposition to sell, 
lease, or dispose of the same shall also be approved by a three-fifths vote of the electors 
of the city voting thereon at any general or special election.  

PROCEDURE 
 

A. Real estate review 
 

All unused and marginally used city-owned real estate will be reviewed on a continuing basis to determine 
public facility needs. The city council shall make the final determination regarding such properties with 
any or all of the following procedural steps: 

1. Review by appropriate city departments. 
2. Review by any applicable city commission(s). 
3. Review by the planning commission for consistency with the comprehensive plan and 
environmental impact. 
4. The staff's recommendation and relevant comments along with those of the planning 
commission are submitted to the city council. 
5. The city council then determines the designation to be applied to the property (e.g., public 
facility, open space, surplus, sale, or lease). 
 

B. Comprehensive plan and rezoning. 
 

Before marketing a parcel, staff will review the parcel for likely changes in density or intensity of use since 
the city acquired the property. If such changes are likely, then staff shall initiate a necessary rezoning and 
comprehensive plan amendment through the planning commission to enable marketing the property at its 
highest and best use. When different land-use classifications divide projects, staff will seek lot splits, lot 
mergers, or property-line adjustments to divide the property along use lines, to reserve rights-of-way for 
streets and utilities, and to be able to disclose the terms of development of the property. 
 

C. Lease versus sale 
 

City-owned real property not required for municipal uses may be designated for lease or sale using 
criteria listed below. City-owned property may also be leased in whole or in part if said lease does not 
conflict or compromise expected public needs. At the time staff recommends whether the property should 
be sold, leased, or reserved for exchange purposes, council shall be provided with an appropriate 
analysis of the alternatives. 
 

D. Sale of real estate 
 
1. Auction 
Unless otherwise directed by the city council, land which is readily marketable and unrestricted in 
its sale potential will be sold to the highest bidder at a public auction by either oral or sealed bid, 
provided that the highest bid equals or exceeds the minimum published price established by the 
city before bid opening, which price shall not be lower than the amount shown on the appraisal. 
Notice of the sale by bid shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation at least ten days 
before bid opening. If sealed bids are requested, a deposit must accompany each bid in the form 

City Council Packet 29 April 28, 2014



of certified or cashiers’ check made payable to the city in an amount equal to at least 10 percent 
of the bid amount. After sealed bids are opened, oral bids are permitted from bidders who can 
meet the 10 percent deposit requirement. The initial oral bid must be at least 5 percent higher 
than highest sealed bid. Subsequent oral bids must be in increments of not less than $100.00. If 
the person whose bid is accepted fails to pay the total bid price within 60 days from acceptance of 
bid, the bidder's deposit is forfeited, and at the sole option of this city, property may be offered for 
sale to the next highest bidder on the same terms as granted the high bidder. The council shall be 
notified of bids received or, if applicable, the fact that no bids had been received. The council may 
reject any and all bids. The minimum acceptable bid will usually be the appraised fair market 
value as determined by the city assessor or an independent Member of Appraisal Institute (MAI) 
appraiser. The intent of this procedure is to set a minimum bid which will ensure a fair return to 
the city for its property, while encouraging maximum participation in the bidding process.  
 
The city council may determine that property should be developed in a specific manner and may 
issue a request for competitive proposals (RFP) based upon pre-established criteria, in which 
case the property would not be sold at auction but sold through public advertising and the 
solicitation of proposals which will be publicly examined. See appendix A. 
 
2. Negotiated sales 
 
If the property is to be developed in a manner that would satisfy a long-term objective of the city 
or no bids are received or no bids are deemed acceptable by the city council, the city may seek to 
sell land by one of the following: 
 
Marketing - Competitive offers for lease or sale may be solicited from the open market. This may 
be accomplished through several marketing techniques, such as requests for proposals (RFPs), a 
marketing subscription system, direct advertising, exposure through real estate services, posting 
the property, and any other appropriate means.  
 
Direct marketing - seeking to sell the property through direct contacts under the following 
circumstances: 

a. When the land is not readily marketable because of its odd shape, lack of sufficient 
area to meet minimum space requirements for building in the zone in which it is located, 
landlocked state, or other lack of sales potential, the land may be sold by taking offers or 
by negotiation with adjoining landowners, provided the purchase price agreed upon is 
within 10 percent of the appraisal or the land is exchanged for public improvements of 
equal or greater value that would otherwise be the obligation of the city. 
b. When the sale to a contiguous owner would correct a site deficiency or improve access 
to the other property in a manner desired by the city. 
c. When a fee interest in public right-of-way is no longer required, it may be sold to a 
contiguous owner or exchanged for public improvements of equal or greater value. A 
restrictive easement of adequate width or other required easements may be reserved 
from said sale. 
d. When other governmental, public, and quasi-public agencies submit proposals to 
acquire city property, the city shall consider such requests before making the land 
available to the general public. Such sales shall be at fair market value, unless the 
council finds that selling at a lesser value is in the city's interest. Selling land at less than 
the appraised fair market value shall require a three-fifths vote of the city council to do so. 
e. When qualified, nonprofit institutional organizations offer to purchase city-owned land, 
a negotiated sale may be consummated at fair market value, providing there is (1) a 
development commitment and (2) a right to repurchase or a reversion upon a condition 
subsequent.  
f. When a property has been offered by public auction and no acceptable bids have been 
received, it may be sold on a negotiated basis to any applicant submitting an acceptable 
offer within six months following the date of auction. After six months, any offer must be 
based on an updated appraisal. 

City Council Packet 30 April 28, 2014



g. When a property is to be developed in a manner that would satisfy a long term 
objective of the city, the sale may be negotiated as long as the objectives of the city are 
protected by the sale agreement. 
h. Real property exchanges may be consummated by direct negotiation; however, 
exchanges will be considered only when there is an advantage to the city, when it results 
in land needed for a public purpose, or to further the goals and objectives of the city's 
comprehensive plan. 
 

E. Easements 
 

Where the city or other governmental agency has paid for easements, rights-of-way, or access rights and 
requests to vacate such interests are received and approved, the city shall receive the current fair market 
value or equivalent compensation for the removal of the restriction. Easements may be exchanged for 
other easements or relocated to other locations without compensation. A three-fifths vote of the city 
council can enable the abandonment of such easements and rights-of-way to adjacent property owners if 
the area, shape, and value of the land are found by the city council to be severely compromised. 
 

F. Exchanges 
 

When land is exchanged, it shall be done based on the fair market value of each property as determined 
by appraisal. Any difference in value shall be made up by the party with the lower appraisal value. 
 

G. Payment for city property 
 

Sales of real property shall be on an all cash-basis, with the following exceptions: 
1. Upon written recommendation and approval by the council, a parcel of surplus real property 
may be sold on such credit terms as are deemed to be necessary in each case. After the required 
down payment has been made, the balance of the purchase price shall be secured by a note and 
deed of trust. The credit payment period shall not exceed five years from the date of execution of 
the trust deed. Interest shall be at the prevailing rate in the community. 
2. Sales to nonprofits performing a public purpose may be in the form of a loan or residual 
receipts note at less than the prevailing interest rates and for more than five years.  
 

H. Leasing 
 
1. Rate of return. Except for the areas listed below, the city shall obtain a fair market rate of return 
on city-owned property being considered for lease and negotiate terms and conditions which will 
continue to sustain a fair rate of return through rent review, consumer price index adjustments, 
reappraisals, or the application of percentage rents to gross income. The rate of return shall be 
based upon the highest rate commensurate with the highest and best use of the property or a fair 
rate of return commensurate with the designated public use. Rental rates shall be established by 
the city council based on a current appraisal, comparative studies, or past rents received.  
2. Long-term lease. A lease greater than one (1) year requires council approval. 
3. Short-term lease. Unless there are special circumstances, the city manager without council 
approval may execute a lease term of less than or equal to one (1) year. A short-term lease may 
not be renewed without council approval. 
4. Selection of lessee. Lease proposals shall be evaluated in terms of: 

a. Consideration offered as rent, 
b. Financial capability, 
c. Expertise regarding the proposed leasehold development and operation, 
d. Nature of proposed development, 
e. Special public benefits to be derived (if any), and 
f. Consistency of the intended use with the comprehensive plan and zoning. 

5. Leasehold assignments. Requests for assignment of leasehold interest will be evaluated on the 
same basis as the criteria used in evaluating a leasehold proposal. The city manager may 

City Council Packet 31 April 28, 2014



authorize assignments which do not require amendment of the master lease provisions and do 
not extend beyond the term of the lease. 
6. Subleases. Requests for sublease approval will be considered on the merits of each individual 
transaction. No sublease shall be approved which would be detrimental to the city's rights under 
the master lease. The city manager may authorize subleases which meet this condition and 
which do not require amendment of the master lease or extend the term of the lease. 
7. Amendments. Amendments of long-term leases require council authorization. Whenever there 
is a substantial amendment, staff shall provide the council an indication of the fair return for the 
leasehold. This can be accomplished by appraisals, a survey of the market rate of return, a 
combination of the above, or any other relevant information. 
8. Updating lease terms. Lease terms shall be updated as often as practicable whenever there is 
a request for assignment or significant amendments or subleases are proposed. 
9. Financial encumbrances. The city will generally not subordinate its fee interest to 
encumbrances placed against the leasehold by the lessee without specific authorization of the 
city council. 
10. Tenant improvements. Improvements installed by the lessee will be removed at termination 
without cost to the city or they will revert to the city. In the event of removal, the property will be 
returned to "as was" condition. All leasehold improvements and alterations require prior approval 
by the city manager or city council, depending on the term of the lease. Any improvements within 
a public right-of-way by a lessee shall be deeded to the city. 
11. Lease term. Lease terms will be limited to the shortest practical time commensurate with 
capital investment in permanent improvements to be made by the lessee following state law. 
12. Audits. The city may audit all percentage leases in the first year of operation to establish 
proper reporting procedures and at least once every three years afterwards. More frequent audits 
may be made if appropriate. The city shall reserve the right to audit all other leases and 
agreements if determined warranted by the director of finance or city manager. Absent a city 
audit, a lessee shall submit an annual report certified by a certified public accountant each year 
within 30 days of the anniversary date of the lease. 
13. Cancellation clauses. Short-term leases shall not have cancellation clauses unless they are 
month-to-month leases. 
 

I. Option agreements 
 
1. Option to sell. When properties have been put up for sealed or oral bids and bids have not 
either been received or been rejected by the city, the city manager may enter an option 
agreement of up to 90 days with someone interested in purchasing surplus property. Any such 
option agreement shall be subject to the following minimum terms: 

a. Shall not exceed 90 days without approval of the city council; 
b. Shall provide time for the prospective buyer to perform due diligence to see if the property 
is feasible for his/her purposes; 
c. Shall require a minimum non-refundable deposit of not less than $1,000 or 1% of the value 
of the real estate, whichever is more; 
d. Shall require forfeiture of the deposit if the property is not placed in escrow within 90 days; 
e. Shall set the minimum purchase price of the property at not less than the appraised fair 
market value, based on its true cash value or an appraisal prepared within six months of the 
date escrow was opened, and shall provide a non-refundable deposit in an amount agreed 
upon by the city council and set the length of escrow; 
f. Shall disclose all realtors involved, if any; and 
g.Shall disclose the name of the buyer and his/her intended use of the property. 

 
J. Real estate listing 

 
It will be the presumption that the city will act as its own agent and that any real estate agent or broker will 
represent the buyer. When it is determined that any real property owned by the city is to be disposed of 
by sale, the city council may authorize a written listing contract with a real estate broker licensed by the 
state of Michigan. 

City Council Packet 32 April 28, 2014



 
Selecting a real estate broker to provide real estate services will be accomplished through a competitive 
recruitment process based on all or some of the following: the type of property to be marketed, relevant 
experience, knowledge of the community, proposed commission, qualifications, necessary licenses in 
good standing, and demonstrated competence. 
 
Absent a real estate listing, the council may still designate certain surplus property for sale or lease for 
which the city would pay a partial commission upon the successful conclusion of a sale or lease. The 
agent or broker that procures a buyer or lessee for the city would be eligible for a commission. A 
commission would not be paid for subleases and existing leases on city property. 
 
While the city will allow agent or broker participation on designated properties in the sale and lease of 
land not covered by contract, inherent in this is the right of the city to solicit and obtain sales or leases 
through in-house capabilities. There will not be any discount in land values or lease rates due to the 
absence of a commission to real estate brokers. 
 

K. Time of payment of a real estate commission for a sale 
 

In the event an agent or broker covered by contract with the city gets a buyer who submits either the 
highest bid or an offer to purchase based on the fair market value of the parcel and the sale is made and 
completed in due course, the commission provided in the contract will be paid to the agent or broker by 
the escrow agent from the sales proceeds. 
 

L. Real estate commissions 
 

Unless there is a written contract between a real estate agent or broker and the city, the city shall 
represent itself and practice good business practices in all real estate transactions. The city may pay a 
real estate brokerage fee for qualified representation of a selected lessee or purchaser of city property. 
While the amount of rental or purchase price offered is a criterion for selecting a lessee or purchaser in 
competitive situations, the selection will be based on the highest net rental or net purchase price, without 
taking into account any brokerage fees involved in the competition. 
 

M. Real estate agent or broker certification 
 

For any sale or lease involving a real estate agent or broker not under contract to the city on designated 
properties, the city shall require the following: 

1. That the buyer or lessee certify that the real estate agent or broker is his/her agent in the 
transaction and has performed a service and procured the sale or lease. 
2. That the real estate agent or broker certify that he or she is not an employee of the lessee or 
buyer. 
 

N. Use of proceeds 
 

Unless otherwise directed by the city council, proceeds from sales or leases shall be assigned as follows: 
1. To enterprise accounts, if the property was purchased using ratepayer funds. 
2. To the general fund 
3. To a program or grant that requires refunding if the land was purchased using a source of 
money with that type of restriction. 
 

O. Costs to sell, lease, and market surplus properties 
 

Unless otherwise directed, the costs to sell, lease, exchange, or market surplus properties will be charged 
to the fund to which the proceeds of a sale would go. 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 33 April 28, 2014



APPENDIX A 
 
The city from time to time will have parcels that are vital to community and economic development for 
which proposals should be sought and examined by pre-established criteria. This will normally involve 
redevelopment projects. In such circumstances, the city will follow a process that may or may not include: 

1. Preparation of a site development program 
Illustrative development plans and guidelines are prepared by the city that reflect and address: 

• economic parameters and feasibility 
• community goals and design criteria 
• physical capacity 

There may be extensive public participation in the process to address critical issues such as 
height, orientation, parking, traffic, general design/materials, and community character. Open 
workshops or design charrettes may be held early in the process. Typically, this task includes the 
services of a planning/design firm, civil engineer, and traffic planners and often the services of a 
development advisor. The result should be a project that is economically feasible and physically 
reasonable and that meets the goals of the city. Development guidelines will be crafted that give 
prospective developers direction but still allow the community to tap the creativity and 
resourcefulness of the private sector. 
2. Address development readiness of the site 
There must be realistic assessment of factors that may impede development and may be difficult 
for the developer to address. Issues may include ownership holdouts, demolition, environmental 
contamination, soil conditions, storm water requirements, infrastructure status and responsibility, 
title exceptions and other similar problems. Who is in the best position to address these issues 
must be evaluated and action taken to resolve the issues. Decisions must be made as to the role 
the developer may have to play in their resolution. At the very least the key issues should be 
disclosed. 
3. Prepare request for qualifications and proposals 
A two-step process may be used, first seeking qualifications (RFQ), then requesting proposals 
(RFP) from a shortlist of qualified firms or teams. The request for qualifications provides full 
background information on the project and seeks the experience, track record, financial capacity, 
and references of development teams.  
4. Review qualifications and creation of a short list 
Qualifications will be reviewed and a short list selected. The review of qualifications will include 
assessing the relevance and depth of the background of each team, a confidential review of 
financial capacity, and interviews of references. A short list will be made. This may require 
interviews and staff/ consultant review. 
5. Solicit/receive proposals from a short list 
Meetings will be held with short-listed teams to provide additional background information and to 
answer questions that may arise. Other discussions also may occur during this period to help the 
developers fully understand the municipality’s goals. The full proposals will include conceptual 
site and building plans, financial analysis, requests for city participation, and proposed payments 
to the city.  
6. Evaluate proposals 
Proposals will be evaluated in terms of overall quality, financial proposal, responsiveness, level of 
commitment from financing sources and tenants, etc. This is sometimes a summary and 
comparison or may be more evaluative. In either case, this provides information for use in 
interviews of the teams. 
7. Interviews 
Developers will publicly present their proposals to the city council. 
8. Selection 
Results of the interviews and public comment, if any, then will be considered along with the 
evaluation of the proposal as for quality, character, track record, ease of working relationship, 
price offered, and other factors. 
9. Negotiation of redevelopment agreement 
Following selection, the city will negotiate the business terms of the redevelopment agreement for 
the project. This includes both financial terms and the responsibilities of parties. City and special 

City Council Packet 34 April 28, 2014



legal counsel may be involved. A redevelopment agreement is the basis for the public-private 
partnership that occurs. The typical redevelopment agreement will include: 

• Approved development 
• Time of performance 
• Protection on undeveloped land 
• Acceptable tenants 
• Payments to city 
• Excess profit sharing 
• Financing terms and public financial role, if any 
• Requirements for closing, such as full funding, in balance 
• Review and monitoring provisions 

This is the opportunity to provide for requirements that reflect the desire to steward the land and achieve 
key public goals. Some may impact the economics of the project and value of the land, but if they are 
affordable and acceptable, the redevelopment agreement and covenants that run with the land are the 
mechanisms to do so and must be done before transfer. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing document is a true copy of action taken by the Swartz Creek City 
Council at the regular meeting of ___________, 2014. 

 

City Council Packet 35 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 36 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 37 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 38 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 39 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 40 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 41 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 42 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 43 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 44 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 45 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 46 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 47 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 48 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 49 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 50 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 51 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 52 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 53 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 54 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 55 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 56 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 57 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 58 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 59 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 60 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 61 April 28, 2014



Michigan.gov Home Business Entity Search Home  |   Corps Home  |   Contact Corporations  |   LARA Home  

 

Searched for: SWARTZ CREEK AREA ART GUILD INC

ID Num: 70771F  
Entity Name: SWARTZ CREEK AREA ART GUILD INC

Type of Entity: Domestic Professional Service Corporation

Resident Agent: NANCY J. OLDS

Registered Office Address: 5360 BOLAND DR.  GRAND BLANC   MI  48439

Mailing Address:   MI 

Formed Under Act Number(s): 192-1962          
Incorporation/Qualification Date: 6-30-2010

Jurisdiction of Origin: MICHIGAN

Number of Shares: 0
Year of Most Recent Annual Report: 13

Year of Most Recent Annual Report With Officers & Directors: 13

Status: ACTIVE   Date: Present

View Document Images

Return to Search Results New Search

Michigan.gov Home   |  Business Entity Search Home  |   Contact Corporations  |   Corps Home  |   LARA Home
State Web Sites  |   Accessibility Policy  |   Link Policy  |   Security Policy

Copyright © 2001- 2014 State of Michigan

Corporate Entity Details http://www.dleg.state.mi.us/bcs_corp/dt_corp.asp?id_nbr=70771F&nam...

1 of 1 4/21/2014 12:44 PM

City Council Packet 62 April 28, 2014



M
or

ris
h

Civic
Mason

Fr
ed

er
i c

k

Church

Mary

Fortino

City of  Swartz Creek
0 0.025 0.05 0.075 0.10.0125

Miles ®City Council Packet 63 April 28, 2014

azettel
Callout
Market/Roadside Stand Location



CREEK MARKET GUIDELINES 
City of Swartz Creek DDA 

8083 Civic Drive  
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 

 
The Market Guidelines are intended to provide clear direction to all vendors and establish rules 
that help the market run smoothly. All vendors are required to follow the direction of the Market 
Manager and abide by the following Guidelines: 
 
Definitions 
 Brokered products or goods out of state: products produced or grown by someone other 

than the vendor in another state besides Michigan.  
 Brokered products or local area goods: products produced or grown in the state of Michigan. 
 Eligible Farm Organizations: 

o Individual, family or family corporations 
o Full partnership of two or more individual farmers 
o Non-profit educational organizations 

 Farmers: fruit, vegetable and grain growers; producers of eggs, poultry and meat of all 
domestically raised animals, livestock, aqua culturists, and dairy farmers; growers of field 
grown/greenhouse/cold frame plants, flowers and Christmas trees. 

 Grown by Principal Farmer: Principal farmer must be in full control and supervision of the 
individual steps of productions of crops, including tilling, planting, cultivating, spraying, 
harvesting and post-harvest handling with his/her own machinery and labor. For vegetables, 
rental of local farmland is permitted. For orchardists, rental of orchards only is permitted. 
Any other arrangements must be submitted in writing and approved by the Market Manager. 

 Local Market Area: Means the following counties: Saginaw, Shiawassee, Genesee, 
Livingston, Tuscola, Lapeer and Oakland Counties. Other vendors with operations in 
counties not previously stated may be added if approved by the Market Manager. 

 Market Season:  The 2013 Market Season shall start on May 1st and continue through 
September 30th as long as the Manager determines that there is enough product or produce 
to make the market attractive to customers. 

 Other producers: Other producers permitted to sell at the Market include: maple sugar 
producers, bakers, and jelly/jam/preserve producers. Principal producer must be in full 
control of the items sold. 

 Organic producers: Producers register and following the current rules of the Michigan 
Department of Agriculture, Pesticide & Plant Pest Management Division. 

 Creek Market shall be referred to as the Market. 
 Value-added products: Products derived from fruit or vegetables that are transformed into 

gourmet food items. Typical value-added products include jams, jellies, preserves, fruit 
sauces and spreads, pickles, preserved vegetables, chili sauces, extra virgin appellation 
olive oils, herb-flavored olive oils and vinegars, and salsas. Value-added producers can also 
include other types of products: cut flowers, dried flower arrangements, wreaths and wall 
swatches, braided garlic, painted gourds, dried herbs, sachets, soaps made from home-
grown herbs, and herbs grown and sold for medicinal purposes. Any product can be 
considered value-added if it is originally grown (exemptions at the discretion of the Market 
Manager) by the farmer and increased in value “by labor and creativity.” 

 
 
 

City Council Packet 64 April 28, 2014



Vendors and vendor mix 
The Market will be made up of a combination of Grower/Producer Vendors, Food Vendors, and 
Arts and Crafts Vendors. Because the Farmers Market is built around the number of 
Grower/Producer vendors, emphasis will be on these vendors. The Market Manager will 
determine the mix of vendors and give selection preference accordingly.   
 
When admitting vendors, preference will be given, with declining priority, to local growers, 
organic growers, and local artisans.  Food vendors, other produce brokers or other artists may 
be allowed if space permits.  In future years, preference will also be given to vendors that have 
attended the market in the past.  
 
The Market Manager(s) reserve the right to determine the overall size of the market, the number 
of vendors, and the vendor mix.  The Market Manager may refuse admittance to any vendor that 
he/she feels does not meet the eligibility requirements or does not serve the best interests of the 
Market. 
 
General Guidelines 
1.   No commercially produced items or garage sale type items will be allowed to be sold at the 

market unless specifically approved by the Market Manager. 
2.   Artisans must hand make, locally produce, or design their products. The Market Manager 

will review special circumstances. 
3.   If approved by the Market Manager(s), vendors may sell brokered fruits, vegetables or other 

products. Proof of origin of resale goods may be required and/or posted at the vendors’ 
booth. If a potential brokered product for sale at the market is already being sold by an 
existing vendor then the local product may be given preference to sell until all vendor 
produced products are sold out and the Market Manager has approved the sale of the 
brokered product. 

4.   The Market Manager(s) or designee is responsible for the orderly and efficient conduct of 
the Market and for implementing the guidelines. The Market Manager or his/her designee 
reserves the right to conduct a farm or facility inspection at any time during the growing 
season to verify that the product is grown by the vendor.  

5.   If a vendor is unable to attend a market day that they have informed the Market Manager 
they will be vending at, then the vendor should make efforts to contact the Market Manager. 

6.   Disrespect of the Market Manager(s) or other employees is not tolerated and may result in 
the immediate dismissal of the vendor. 

7.   Smoking and alcohol use by vendors and their employees shall be prohibited on City 
property when the Market is open.   

8. Vendors are not allowed to park any portion of their vehicle used to bring their goods for 
sale to the market on any public sidewalk or other required pedestrian or vehicle travel-way. 

 
Market Logistics 
1.   All vendors must set up in an areas designated by the Manager.  
2.   Vehicles will be allowed to load and unload in the market area for set up purposes.  During 

operating hours, the vehicles will be located per the Managers discretion (adjacent to vendor 
stalls or in the designated parking area). Restocking of goods shall be done in accordance 
with the direction of the Market Manager.  

3.   Manager may permit goods to be sold directly out of vehicles with written consent. 
4. Vendor set up shall be limited to a pre authorized stall, tent, and/or vehicle. Additional signs, 

products, displays, and features must have the written consent of the manager. 
5.  No vendor or vendor equipment can be onsite between the hours of 8pm and 8am. 

City Council Packet 65 April 28, 2014



6.  No vendor equipment, vehicles, products, signs, or other property is permitted at the market 
without the presence of the vendor or his/her staff. 

7. The rules and ordinances of the city that apply to public parks shall apply to the grounds of 
the market unless there is a direct and explicit conflict.  

 
Items for Sale 
General Products for Sale 
1.   The sale of the following produce and products are encouraged: Vegetables, fruits, grains, 

cheese, dairy products, meats, processed foods, jams and jellies and the like, prepared fruit 
juices, cider, baked goods, maple products, honey, plants, flowers, nursery products, eggs 
and poultry products, herbs, fish, domestic game, and value added products. 

2.   Applicable local, state, and Market guidelines must upheld when selling approved items. 
3.   Produce and products offered for sale are expected to be of the highest quality. If in the 

opinion of the Market Manager, a vendor offers for sale inferior produce or products, the 
vendor may be required to withdraw the item(s). 

4.   Produce and products should be priced clearly and displayed in a manner that does not 
mislead customers. Items not produced by the vendor must be marked according to source 
and/or locality of origin. 

5.   The Market Manager approves produce and products allowed to be sold at the Market. All 
items intended for sale should be listed in the vendor application. Only produce and 
products approved by the Market Manager may be sold by the vendor(s). 

 
Agricultural Products 
1.   Agricultural products should be free of visible defects, disease or insect problems, and 

should meet standards for quality, freshness, size and grade. 
2.   Certified organic growers are encouraged to display their certificate, so that customers can 

make informed decisions of purchases. 
 
State and Local Regulations 
1.   Vendors selling taxable items must display a valid Michigan Tax Certificate. State sales tax 

is charged on: candy (including maple candy), prepared meals, cut flowers, nursery 
products (including vegetable and herb plants), Christmas trees, wreaths, ornamental 
gourds, art and all handcrafted items. Sales tax is not charged on: Fruits, vegetables, cider, 
juice, honey, maple sugar, maple cream, baked goods, eggs and egg products, meat, and 
fresh cut herbs.  If you sell any taxable items you must file with the State of Michigan. 

 
Michigan Department of Treasury 

Registration Section 
Treasury Building 

Lansing, Michigan 48922 
Phone: (517) 636-4660 

 
2.   Nursery and greenhouse crop vendors must display a valid Michigan Nursery License. 
 

Michigan Department of Agriculture 
P.O. Box 30017 

Lansing, Michigan 48909 
Phone: (800) 292-3939 

Or 
 

Saginaw Regional Office 

City Council Packet 66 April 28, 2014



1585 Concentric Blvd. 
Saginaw, MI 48604 

Phone: (989) 757-7501 
 

3.   Vendors selling hot or cold food, processed foods and other perishable items shall do so in 
compliance with the requirements of the Genesee County Health Department and/or the 
State of Michigan. 

 
Department of Agriculture. 

Genesee County Health Department 
630 S. Saginaw St. 

Flint, Michigan 48502-1540 
Phone: (810) 257-3612 

Fax: (810) 257-3147 
 
4.   Vendors selling by weight must have scales checked annually by a licensed official of the 

State of Michigan Department of Agricultures Bureau of Weights and Measures and comply 
with all requirements of Public Act 283 of 1964. The Bureau of Weights and Measures can 
be contacted at (517) 655-8202 for more information regarding the law, the serviceperson 
registration program, or any compliance assistance needs you may have. 

5.   The weight given on the packaged goods must be accurate. 
6.   Vendors selling by volume are required to use standard size containers such as pint, quart, 

½ peck, peck, ½ bushel and bushel. 
 
Guidelines for Selling 
1.   Vendors are encouraged to post a sign clearly showing their business name and address.  
2.   Vendors are encouraged to wear nametags. 
3.   Vendors are required to bring their own tables, display racks, et cetera.  Vendor stalls shall 

not damage any property or pose a hazard to customers or employees through their 
erection or operation.  Customers should be able to easily access the goods on display. 

4.   Vendors are required to keep their stand or selling area neat and clear of obstacles, litter 
and other debris. Vendors are responsible for bringing garbage containers for disposal of 
waste and debris for the convenience of their customers. At the end of the day, you are 
required to take home everything that you do not sell including boxes, bags, etc. 

5.   Vendors are required to clean up all debris in and around their vending booth during and at 
the end of the Market day. 

6.   Vendors are encouraged to have business cards available for customers. 
7.   Vendors are expected to treat customers, other vendors and the Market Manager in a 

courteous manner. 
8.   No discrimination is permitted at the Market. 
9.   Vendors who display or hand out materials from other non-profit groups or organizations 

may be required to display signage that clearly states that such solicitation is not affiliated 
with the City of Swartz Creek or the Market. 

10. Vendors should not bring dogs, pets or livestock to the market unless otherwise approved 
by the Market Manager. 

11. No hawking or calling attention to products or services or unapproved, amplified music by 
vendors is permitted during Market hours of operation. 

13. The representative of the vendor should be directly involved with or knowledgeable about 
the production of the produce or products being sold at the Market. 

14. The Market Manager has the right to revoke a vendor’s permit for continued violation(s) of 
either city ordinance or market guidelines. 

City Council Packet 67 April 28, 2014



15. Deceptive advertising is expressly prohibited and will result in immediate revocation of 
vendor permit. 

16. No sales, solicitation, display, or similar activities shall be carried out at the market or market 
parking area without first submitting and obtaining approval of a standard application. 

17. Deceptive packaging is illegal and will result in immediate revocation of vendor permit. For 
Further Information on grading, packaging, and labeling contact: 

 
Michigan Department of Agriculture 

P.O. Box 30017 
Lansing, MI 48909 

Phone: (800) 292-3939 
 

Or 
 

Saginaw Regional Office 
1585 Tittabawassee Road 

Saginaw, MI 48604 
Phone: (989) 758-1778 

Fax: (989) 758-1484 
 

And 
 

Genesee County Health Department 
630 S. Saginaw St. 

Flint, MI 48502 
Phone (810) 257-3612 
Fax: (810) 257-3147 

 
Grievance Procedure 
1.   Whenever the Market Manager, a city official, or other designee finds any vendor in violation 

of any of the requirements of these Market Guidelines, cover sheet agreement or any other 
city ordinance, the Manager shall immediately notify, verbally or in writing, the vendor 
thereof to correct or abate the violation(s). If the violation is not abated within a reasonable 
period of time, established by the Manager, then the Market Manager shall immediately 
revoke the vendor’s permit and file a report of such violation with the City Administration. 

2.   The vendor shall have thirty (30) days to file a grievance or appeal, from the time he or she 
is notified of any revocation of vendor permit, with the City Council. The City Council shall 
have the final authority to reinstate a vendor’s permit or permanently revoke the permit and 
thereby disallowing the vendor from doing business at the Market. 

 
Reserved Spaces 
1.   Each vendor shall be entitled to a minimum of one full selling space, stall or booth per 

market day. The Market Manager assigns reserved spaces at the beginning of the season. 
The Market Manager will make every effort to re-assign reserved spaces at the beginning of 
each season. The Market Manager will make every effort to reassign returning vendors to 
the same area used the prior market year. There may be occasions in which vendors will be 
asked to move to another space by the Market Manager. 

2.   Vendors may not share or sub-let spaces. 
3.   The Market shall retain spaces for the Market Manager to use for events, promotions, 

entertainment etc. 
 

City Council Packet 68 April 28, 2014



Regulatory Guide for Selling at the Creek Market Place 
1.   Insurance: Liability insurance is encouraged for all vendors selling produce, food, drink and 

all other products consumed or applied to the skin or hair. Vendors are encouraged to show 
proof of general liability insurance (premises and product) in the amount of $500,000 and 
name the City of Swartz Creek, the Swartz Creek DDA, the Creek Market Place, and the 
Market Manager as an additional insured. 

2.   Sanitation for Food Handlers (seller prepared food items): 
• Food handlers must be personally clean and follow sanitary practices in handling food as 
required by the Genesee County Health Department. 
• Pets are not permitted in areas where food is handled. 
• Food and ingredients must be free of adulterants. 
• Food which requires refrigeration must be stored at temperature according to the Genesee 
County Health Department and Michigan Department of Agriculture and the Market 
Guidelines. 
• All utensils, containers and equipment shall be clean and in good condition. 
• Health Certificates are required and must be displayed for food services. 

 
Products 
1.   Fruits and Vegetables 

• Bulk displays of unpackaged fresh fruit and vegetables are not subject to grading, 
packaging and labeling requirements. 
• Closed packages of fresh produce (including honey, cider or maple syrup) require: 
 Name of product (e.g. peppers) 
 Name and address of producer 
 Declaration of quantity 
 Declaration of quality is required for the following products when packaged: 
 Apples: variety, grade, Michigan label 
 Apple cider: whether or not pasteurized 
 Grapes: grade marked unclassified 
 Lettuce: cull lettuce must be designated as such 
 Maple syrup: grade 
 Onions: grade if advertising price 
 Potatoes: grade 

 
2.   Dairy Products: 

• All fluid milk must be packaged in properly labeled commercial containers at a facility 
having a permit from the Michigan Department of Agriculture. Milk must be from your herd, 
managed and milked by the vendor or at his or her farm by an authorized representative. 
• Butter and cheese must be prepackaged and properly labeled. Refrigeration below 40 
degrees Fahrenheit is required. The vendor or his or her representative must make cheese 
and other dairy products.  
• Frozen desserts (e.g. ice cream) must be packaged and in commercial containers and 
properly labeled (permit required, please contact the Michigan Department of Agriculture) 
and refrigeration is required. 
• Serving frozen desserts for immediate consumption is under the jurisdiction of the 
Genesee County Health Department 

3.   Eggs from your own farm: 
• Must be marked with exact grade, size, name of producer, and contents. Individual eggs 
must be weighed, graded and candled. Bulk displays require size and grade. Store eggs in a 
cool place and maintain less than 45 degrees Fahrenheit. Nest run eggs must be labeled as 
such and are exempt from rules. 

City Council Packet 69 April 28, 2014



4.   Meat, poultry, fish, domestic game meat: 
• All meats, poultry, fish and domestic game meat must meet the regulations of the Genesee 
County Health Department and the Michigan Department of Agriculture. Appropriate permits 
must be presented to the Market Manager or representative. 

5.   Cider and fruit Juices: 
• Cider and fruit juices may be sold only by producers of those fruits. Follow labeling 
requirements set by the Department of Agriculture and State and Genesee County 
Department of Health. Fruit may be pressed off farm, and producers must provide name and 
address of mill. At least 60% of fruit in your juice shall come from your orchards. Up to 40% 
may come from another farm within the market region. No concentrates are allowed. Apple 
cider manufacturers are required to hold an appropriate license. 

6.   Drinks at the Creek Market Place: 
• Fruit juice, cider, milk and teas may be sold by the cup. Bottled water and carbonated 
beverages may be sold. Commercial teas and coffees may be sold by arrangement by the 
Market Manager. 

7.   Dried fruit shall be only from fruit grown and dried by the vendors farming operation. 
8.   Honey and Bee Products including beeswax candles, propolis and royal jelly extracted and 

bottled by you from hives in the market region. 
9.   Jams, Jellies, Preserves and the like must be prepared by you from fresh produce. A 

majority of fruits or vegetables should be from the Market region.  
10. Grain products include pancake mix, granola, pasta and other grain products from grain 

grown by you. Grain products may be processed off farm, providing only your grain is used 
in manufacturing of these products. 

11. Baked Goods: 
Baked goods are encouraged to be freshly baked and prepared from scratch. Commercially 
prepared dough mixes, crusts and shells or filling are discouraged. No commercially canned 
or frozen fruits or vegetables should be used unless approved by the Market Manager. Any 
commercially canned or frozen fruits or vegetables used in a product may be required to be 
noted as such on the product display or price card. Produce not grown in this area such as 
cookies, bread and “dry” cakes may be sold at the Market if they are protected by a covering 
or closed packaging. All baked goods must be either individually prepackaged or otherwise 
protected by a transparent tray cover. Items sold in closed packages must include: 
 Identity of food in package form 
 Name of manufacturer, packer or distributor 
 Place of business 
 Ingredients declaration in descending order of predominance by weight on single panel 

of the label 
 Net quantity of contents 

Cream, custard, pumpkin, meat or other single-crust pies or cream or cheese-filled baked 
goods may not be sold at the Market unless prepared in an approved, inspected baking 
facility, packaged or covered, and properly refrigerated. Refrigeration must be provided for 
perishables, and meet all Genesee County Health Department standards. 

12. Home Processed Foods: 
Home processed foods are regulated under the umbrella of the Michigan Department of 
Agriculture and its Michigan Food Law of 2000 and 1999 Federal Food Code. Licensing is 
required and the information can be found at www.michigan.gov/mda. For more information 
call the Michigan Department of Agriculture. 

13. Plants and Nursery Products: 
Plant and nursery products include annuals, perennials, shrubs, trees, vegetable and fruit 
and flower plants and other nursery stock. Registration with the Michigan Department of 
Agriculture is required. Houseplants and cut flowers are excluded from this registration. 

City Council Packet 70 April 28, 2014



Unless specified, items must be grown, foraged and or produced by you on your farm or in 
your own facility in this region. The following non-edible items grown by you may be sold: 
 Field grown/greenhouse/cold frame grown plants and flowers. Bedding and potted 

plants and flowers must be started by you from seed, cell pack, bulbs, cuttings, plugs 
or received dormant (e.g., azaleas, hydrangeas, roses.) Large foliage plants from air 
layered cuttings, tooted in you facilities are allowed. Plants sold must be well 
established, with good root system and disease and insect free. 

 Christmas Trees. 
 Wreaths, roping, arrangements and displays of fresh or dried flowers or greens. 
 Vines and gourds. 
 Wild and foraged plant materials not protected by law. 
 Wood products from your woodlot, including firewood, mulch chips, wind and woven 

wood baskets and furniture. 
14. Animal Products allowed at the Market include feathers, down, wool and wool yarn, fleece, 

and leather. 
15. Gift Baskets may be sold, with a majority of items coming from your farm. Other items 

should be obtained from other Market vendors. 
16. Other items: Products not specifically listed in these rules and regulations must be pre-

approved by Market Manager. Products which substantially depart from practices or 
products currently permitted may be reviewed by the Market Manager and must be 
approved by city council. 

17. Dog treats and similar items must be approved for sale by the Market Manager and must 
conform to requirements of the Michigan State Department of Agriculture. 

 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 71 April 28, 2014



VENDOR APPLICATION 
CREEK MARKET 
City of Swartz Creek DDA 

8083 Civic Drive  
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 

810-635-4464 
 
 
Date: ____/____/____      Fee: $50 
 
Applicant Name: 
 
Business Name & Address: 
 
 
 
Business Phone:       Fax: 
 
Business Owner’s Name: 
 
Business Owner’s Home Address: 
 
 
 
Business Owner’s Home Phone:     Fax: 
 
E-Mail Address: 
 
Webpage: 
 
May the Creek Market list the following in public media (webpage, newsletters, etc.?) 
 
Business Address:  Yes___ No___ 
Business Phone/Fax:  Yes___ No___ 
Home Address:   Yes___ No___ 
Home Phone/Fax:  Yes___ No___ 
Webpage:   Yes___ No___ 
Email Address:   Yes___ No___ 
 
Make payments to City of Swartz Creek DDA, 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, MI  
48473 
 
1. Cash or check payments may be either dropped off or mailed to city hall or collected on the day of the 
Market by the Market Manager or designee. 
2. Payment for vendor booth fees in the form of a check shall be made out to the City of Swartz Creek 
DDA. All payments shall be receipted. 
3. The Market Manager reserves the right to prorate or refund payments for inclement weather, special 
events, or other hardships.  

City Council Packet 72 April 28, 2014



If available, please attach a tentative list of the requested number of stalls next to the 
accompanying date(s). 
 
Produce and Products Requested for Sale at Market 
Please be specific and list all items you are considering selling. Indicate whether the items are 
grown or made by you or your operation or whether they are not produced by you (brokered). 
Include all kinds of fruits and vegetables, all types of nursery stock, flowers, prepared foods, 
processed foods, baked goods, animals and animal products, et cetera.  Produce and products 
not produced by applicant (brokered products) must be approved for sale by the Market 
Manager. Artisans and crafters should hand make, locally produce, or design 100% of their 
products.  Products will be given preference accordingly. 
 

Item Grown Crafted Brokered Market 
Approved*  

Market 
Manager 
Initials* 

            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
      

 
*Office Use Only 
 
Have you participated in other markets? If yes, please list the other market(s) that you have 
been a vendor at:  
 
 
 
I agree to facility inspections by the Market Manager and/or his or her representative during the 
2014 Market season.   Yes___ No___ 
 
Sales Tax Number or ID (If applicable): ______________________________________ 
(Please attach a photocopy of STC if you sell taxable items) 
 
It is NOT required that a vendor have liability insurance, however, it is recommended. If you 
have liability insurance, please list the company’s name and address:  
 
(Please attach a photocopy of your certificate of insurance for general liability) 
 
 
Other applicable vendor insurance and/or licensing:  

City Council Packet 73 April 28, 2014



 
 
Kitchen Permit (If required): Please attach a copy of appropriate certificate(s) from either the 
Genesee County Health Department and/or Michigan Department of Agriculture. 
 
Notes/Comments:  
 
 
Market Information 
Market Location: The market is located at the North West corner of Miller Road and Fortino 
Road, Swartz Creek, MI 48473.  This market has visibility and access directly to Miller Road in 
downtown. 
 
Dates: The market operate between May 01 and September 30, 2014.   
 
Times: The Market will be open to the public from 8:00 am to 8:00 pm.  
 
Market Contact Information: Adam Zettel, azettel@cityofswartzcreek.org 
Please contact Adam if you have questions regarding the market or if you want to become a 
vendor. Mail all correspondence to: City of Swartz Creek, Attn: Adam Zettel, 8083 Civic Drive, 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
 
Swartz Creek Farmers’ Market Participation: 
1. All vendors must complete a Vendor Application before selling at the market and must abide 
by all Market Guidelines. 
2. All vendors must follow the directions of the Market Manager (Adam Zettel) or his/her 
designee. 
 
Application Submittal Checklist 

___ Completed Application 
___ Completed listing of produce and/or products 
___  Photocopy of State Tax Certification, if you sell taxable items 
___ Copy of Certificate of Insurance for at least $500,000 for general liability insurance 

(premises and product), naming the City of Swartz Creek, the Swartz Creek DDA, and 
their employees as an additional insured (if applicable). 

___  Copy of appropriate certificate from either the Genesee County Health Department or the 
Michigan Department of Agriculture (if applicable) 

___  Plant growers’ license (if applicable) 
___  Nursery dealers’ license (if applicable) 
___  All other licenses/permits that may be required by law 

 
Thank you for making this application to the Creek Market. The Market Manager or his/her 
representative will be contacting you shortly. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 74 April 28, 2014

mailto:azettel@cityofswartzcreek.org


Vendor Compliance Agreement 
 

I (We), the undersigned, have read the Market Guidelines for the Creek Market, and agree to 
abide by all rules and regulations. 
 
I (We) further understand that failure to comply with the Market Guidelines and all federal, state, 
county and local regulations and licensing may mean dismissal from the market. 
 
As a vendor wishing to participate in the Creek Market, I (We) agree to SAVE, HOLD 
HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY the Creek Market, the City of Swartz Creek, the Swartz Creek 
DDA, the Market Manager and his/her designees, and any other property owners associated 
with the Creek Market from any and all liability or responsibility pertaining to any damages to 
person or property on the site assigned to me (us) by the above parties, when such damages or 
liability arise out of acts of my (our) own, or of my (our) employees or associates, located at 
such site. 
 
I (We) understand and acknowledge that the city is authorized to perform a record check on 
myself and any attendants that may be present at the market location. I further acknowledge 
that the Market and/or the city reserve the right to deny my application based upon findings 
resulting from such record check. 
 
I (We) understand that submission of this application does not guarantee that I (We) will be 
allowed to vend at the market. I understand that the Creek Market reserves the right to accept 
or deny entry into the market based upon the market’s guidelines for vendors and the Market 
Manager’s discretion. Final decision will be made by the Market Manager. 
 
_____________________________   _________________  
Name (Print)       Date 
 
_____________________________   _________________  
Name (Signature)      Date 
 
Please list the full legal name and date of birth of all booth attendants that may be working at 
the Creek Market (include yourself if you will be in attendance). Include an additional sheet if 
necessary. All attendants must understand all market guidelines and all rules. 
 
_________________________________   ________________________________ 
Name of booth attendant (print)    Date of Birth 
 
_________________________________   ________________________________ 
Name of booth attendant (print)    Date of Birth 
 
_________________________________   ________________________________ 
Name of booth attendant (print)    Date of Birth 
 
_________________________________   ________________________________ 
Name of booth attendant (print)    Date of Birth 
 
_________________________________   ________________________________ 
Name of booth attendant (print)    Date of Birth 

City Council Packet 75 April 28, 2014



Creek Market Schedule 
2014 Season 

 
Vendor: _____________________________________________________ 
 
Please indicate with an ‘x’ the days and times you intend to be present at the market 
location. Note that adjustments and additions can be made with the written consent of 
the Market Manager. 
 

  Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
8:00am               
9:00am               
10:00am               
11:00am               
12:00pm               
1:00pm               
2:00pm               
3:00pm               
4:00pm               
5:00pm               
6:00pm               
7:00pm               

 
 
Please note the date range, along with any additional notes regarding your proposed 
schedule, in the space below. 
 
Date Start: __________________  Date End: ______________________ 
 
Other notes:  
 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 76 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 77 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 78 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 79 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 80 April 28, 2014



 
 
December 18, 2013 

 

Tom Svrcet  

8083 CIVIC DRIVE     

SWARTZ CREEK, MI  48473-1498 

 

Re: Communications Facility located at 4355 SOUTH ELMS ROAD, SWARTZ CREEK, MI  48473 

 

Contract #:  68991  FA#:  10076378 

 

City of Swartz Creek, 

As you are aware, AT&T Mobility (“AT&T”) has partnered with Md7 to work with you to facilitate certain 

modifications to the cell site lease on your property.  These modifications will allow AT&T to meet current 

business requirements and enhance your site’s value to the network. 

Changes in the Wireless Industry 

Recent industry developments are changing how wireless telecommunications carriers operate.  In the past, 

carriers focused on rapidly building out their networks in order to provide the best coverage.  Today, while 

consumers are enjoying greater services and better coverage than ever before, operating costs continue to 

escalate.  As a result, the wireless industry is also focusing on operating networks as efficiently as possible.  

Eliminating Risk and Increasing Value 

AT&T is addressing this shift by reviewing its cell site portfolio.  AT&T has partnered with Md7 to offer 

selected landlords like you the opportunity to minimize the business risks associated with industry 

uncertainties and to increase the value of your cell site lease.  

Criteria for Cellular Site Retention/Rent Guarantee Period 

AT&T is willing to offer the following option to secure a longer-term lease with you: 

 $1,000.00 per month, commencing March 01, 2014                

 10 % rent increase every 5 years, commencing March 01, 2019         

 Extension of Lease through February 29, 2044         

 

 

           

AT&T will modify its termination rights under the lease to guarantee your rental income in the amount of 

$36,000.00 for the next 36 months. 

Current Amount of Guaranteed Rent (with terms of the current lease, Section):         

Or 

 

City Council Packet 81 April 28, 2014



Md7 will provide a one-time lump sum payment of $128,520.  In return, you will grant a ninety-nine (99) year 

easement on your property and assign the lease rights and rental income under your lease with AT&T to Md7 

or an affiliate of Md7.  It is important for you to know that the $128,520 pre-payment does not change the 

ownership or control of the rest of your property in any manner. 

In order to maintain its long-term flexibility, AT&T will also require the following lease provisions to address 

future technological and network changes:  

 Expansion of Permitted Use 

 

“Lessee, its personnel, invitees, contractors, agents, sublessees, or its authorized sublessees, or assigns 
may use the Premises, at no additional cost or expense, for the transmission and reception of any and 
all communications signals and to  modify, supplement, replace, upgrade, expand, including but not 
limited to the number and type(s) of antennas, or refurbish the equipment and/or improvements 
thereon, or relocate the same within the Premises at any time during the term of this Lease for any 
reason, or in order to be in compliance with any current or future federal, state or local mandated 
application, including but not limited to emergency 911 communication services or for any other 
reason.  Lessor shall reasonably cooperate in obtaining governmental and other use permits or 
approvals necessary or desirable for the foregoing permitted use.  If Lessor does not comply with the 
terms of this section, in addition to any other rights it may have at law, Lessee may terminate this 
Lease and shall have no further liability to Lessor.  If Lessor does not comply with the terms of this 
section, Lessee will have the right to exercise any and all rights available to it under law and equity, 
including the right to cure Lessor’s default and to deduct the costs of such cure from any monies due 
to Lessor from Lessee.” 
 

 Expansion of the Premises 

 

“Lessor grants, to the extent practicable and on a space available basis, at no additional cost or 
expense,  the Lessee the right to enlarge the Premises or the Lessor shall make space available on the 
Property for Lessee so that Lessee or its authorized sublessees may implement any necessary 
modifications, supplements, replacements, refurbishments, or expansions to the Communications 
Facility or to any equipment related thereto, or for any other reasons, as determined by Lessee in its 
sole discretion.” 
 

 24/7 Access 

 

“Lessor hereby grants to Lessee, its authorized sublessees, and to any public or private utility serving 
Lessee’s Communications Facility or related equipment,  access to the Premises and to and over the 
Property twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week (24/7), including but not limited to, access 
from an accessible, open and maintained public road to the Premises, for the installation, 
maintenance, repair, modification, alteration, or refurbishment of the Communications Facility or 
any equipment related to such Communications Facility as such access is deemed necessary by 
Lessee, in its sole discretion, without the requirement of notice by Lessee to Lessor.  In the event 
that any public or private utility serving Lessee’s Communications Facility is unable to use the access 
provided to Lessee, the Lessor hereby agrees to grant additional access to Lessee or to such public or 
private utility, for the benefit of Lessee, at no cost to Lessee and pursuant to the same terms and 
conditions as noted above.  The terms and conditions regarding access in the Agreement remain in 
full force and effect, except as modified by this paragraph.” 

 

 

City Council Packet 82 April 28, 2014



 Sale of Property 

 

(a) "Lessor shall not be prohibited from the selling, leasing or use of any of the Property or the 

Surrounding Property except as provided below.   

(b) If Lessor, at any time during the Term of this Agreement, decides to rezone or sell, 

subdivide or otherwise transfer all or any part of the Premises, or all or any part of the 

Property or Surrounding Property, to a purchaser other than Lessee, Lessor shall promptly 

notify Lessee in writing, and such rezoning, sale, subdivision or transfer shall be subject to 

this Agreement and Lessee’s rights hereunder.   In the event of a change in ownership, 

transfer or sale of the Property, within ten (10) days of such transfer, Lessor or its successor 

shall send the documents listed below in this subsection (b) to Lessee.  Until Lessee receives 

all such documents, Lessee shall not be responsible for any failure to make payments under 

this Agreement and reserves the right to hold payments due under this Agreement.  

i. Old deed to Property 

ii. New deed to Property 

iii. Copy of current Tax Bill 

iv. New IRS Form W-9 

v. Completed and Signed AT&T Payment Direction Form 

vi. Full contact information for new Lessor including phone number(s) 

(c) Lessor agrees not to sell, lease or use any areas of the Property or Surrounding Property for 

the installation, operation or maintenance of other wireless communications facilities if such 

installation, operation or maintenance would interfere with Lessee’s Permitted Use or 

communications equipment as determined by radio propagation tests performed by Lessee 

in its sole discretion.  Lessor or Lessor’s prospective purchaser shall reimburse Lessee for 

any costs and expenses of such testing.  If the radio frequency propagation tests demonstrate 

levels of interference unacceptable to Lessee, Lessor shall be prohibited from selling, leasing 

or using any areas of the Property or the Surrounding Property for purposes of any 

installation, operation or maintenance of any other wireless communications facility or 

equipment. 

(d) The provisions of this Section shall in no way limit or impair the obligations of Lessor under 

this Agreement, including interference and access obligations.” 

 

 Rental Stream Offer 

 

"If at any time after the date of this Agreement, Lessor receives a bona fide written offer from a 

third party seeking an assignment or transfer of the Rent payments associated with this Agreement 

(“Rental Stream Offer”), Lessor shall immediately furnish Lessee with a copy of the Rental Stream 

Offer.  Lessee shall have the right within ninety (90) days after it receives such copy to match the 

Rental Stream Offer and agree in writing to match the terms of the Rental Stream Offer.  Such 

writing shall be in the form of a contract substantially similar to the Rental Stream Offer.  If Lessee 

chooses not to exercise this right or fails to provide written notice to Lessor within the ninety (90) 

day period, Lessor may assign the right to receive Rent payments pursuant to the Rental Stream 

Offer, subject to the terms of this Agreement.  If Lessor attempts to assign or transfer Rent 

payments without complying with this Section, the assignment or transfer shall be void.  Lessee 

shall not be responsible for any failure to make payments under this Agreement and reserves the 

right to hold payments due under this Agreement until Lessor complies with this Section.” 

City Council Packet 83 April 28, 2014



 

 Taxes 

 

“Lessor shall be responsible for the payment of all real property taxes and assessments levied against 
the Premises and for any increases in such taxes and assessments that may be due to Lessee’s 
Communication Facility or to Lessee’s use of the Premises and shall not seek reimbursement from 
Lessee for any or any portion of such taxes or assessments.” 

 Sublease Rights 

  
"Lessee may sublease all or any portion of the Premises to any person or entity licensed by the FCC 
to operate wireless communications services (hereinafter, a “Sublessee”) upon such terms and 
conditions as Lessee and Sublessee shall agree (each such agreement a “Sublease”), upon notice to 
Lessor.  From and after the Effective Date hereof, provided a Sublease is subject to the terms and 
conditions of the Agreement as amended hereby and in consideration of the amended terms herein, 
Lessor’s consent to a Sublessee or Sublease will not be required. Notwithstanding any terms in the 
Agreement to the contrary, no revenue sharing from sublessees shall be due to Lessor nor shall 
Lessor be responsible to review plans from Lessee or its sublessees." 
 

 Removal/Restoration  
 

“In addition to the terms set forth in the Lease, Lessor agrees that the Communications Facility and 

any related equipment brought to the Premises by Lessee, its agents, contractors, predecessors-in-

interest or sublessees, shall be and remain Lessee’s personal property or the personal property of its 

sublessee(s), as the case may be.  Lessor waives any and all rights it may have, including any rights it 

may have in its capacity as Lessor under the Lease to assert any liens, encumbrances or adverse 

claims, statutory or otherwise, related to or in connection with the Communications Facility or any 

portion thereof.  Lessee, in its sole discretion, may remove the Communications Facility or any 

portion of the Communications Facility at any time during the Term of the Lease, without notice to 

Lessor and without Lessor’s consent.    Notwithstanding any terms to contrary, Lessee will not be 

responsible for the replacement of any trees, shrubs or other vegetation, nor will Lessee be required 

to remove from the Premises or the Property any foundations or underground utilities.  Lessee, may, 

in its sole discretion, transfer any improvements or alterations to the Premises to Lessor at any time 

during the Term of the Agreement without notice to the Lessor and without the Lessor’s consent.” 

 
 
 
This letter of understanding is subject in all respects to the preparation, execution and delivery of a definitive 
amendment in form and substance mutually agreeable to each of us.  This letter will not be legally binding 
between us with respect to the proposed business relationship, but instead serves as a statement of our mutual 
intent to work toward entering into such an amendment.     

AT&T values its affiliation with you and hopes to continue a long and mutually profitable relationship in the 

years to come.  After having reviewed these options, please contact me prior to January 3, 2013.  Thank you 

for your consideration.   

Sincerely, 

 

City Council Packet 84 April 28, 2014



Maurice Samuels  

Md7 | Lease Consultant 
10590 West Ocean Air Dr. 
San Diego, CA 92130 
o (858) 964-0289 
f (858) 724-1476  
msamuels@md7.com 
 

Authorized Agent for AT&T Mobility 
cc: Gregory D. Ohmer 

Area Manager Real Estate Transaction, AT&T Mobility 

 

City Council Packet 85 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 86 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 87 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 88 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 89 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 90 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 91 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 92 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 93 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 94 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 95 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 96 April 28, 2014



City Council Packet 97 April 28, 2014



Fund 101 GENERAL FUND

                       FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 1,384,063.00$     

PROJECTED Fiscal July 2013 ‐ June 2014 

   Total Revenues  1,674,492.00$ 

   Total Appropriations  1,927,303.00$ 

 Net Revenues/Appropriations  (252,810.00)$     

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2014  1,131,253.00$   

                                        DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE OF $ 252,810

Fiscal July 2014 ‐ June 2015

   Revenues 2,281,492.19$  

   Project Revenues  5,805.00$          

    TOTAL REVENUES 2,287,297.19$ 

 APPROPRIATIONS 2,322,679.00$  

 PROJECT  APPROPRIATIONS 5,805.00$          

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 2,328,484.00$ 

 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS (41,186.81)$      

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2015 1,090,066.19$   
                                                          DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE OF $ 41,187

City Council Packet 98 April 28, 2014

azettel
Text Box
-This fund is essentially balanced. The operating deficit includes the parking improvements in downtown and year-one wages for police. -I recommend an additional $45,000 contribution to the local street fund (203) to offset the operating deficit projected for that fund. The other funds are stable without assistance.-The next fiscal year will contain unknown wage, tax, revenue sharing, and health expense impacts. -Current projections for expected losses and potential gains in the next fiscal (FY 2016) year balance exceptionally well. That budget should be solvent, barely.



Fund 202 MAJOR STREETS 

                         FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 655,538.00$        

PROJECTED Fiscal July 2013 ‐ June 2014 

   Total Revenues  398,362.00$     

   Total Appropriations  305,983.00$     

 Net Revenues/Appropriations  92,379.00$         

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2014  747,917.00$      

                                        INCREASE IN FUND BALANCE OF $  92,379

Fiscal July 2014 ‐ June 2015

   Revenues 285,300.00$     

   Project Revenues  1,775,515.00$  

    TOTAL REVENUES 2,060,815.00$ 

 APPROPRIATIONS 187,922.00$     

 PROJECT  APPROPRIATIONS 2,183,539.00$  

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 2,371,461.00$ 

 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS (310,646.00)$   

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2015 437,271.00$      

                                        DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE OF $ 310,646

City Council Packet 99 April 28, 2014

azettel
Text Box
-This fund is saving about $100,000 each year after operations.-Noted savings are essential because they are used periodically for large capital projects, such as Miller Road.-This fiscal year is projecting an operating budget that is right on track with expectations.-Project expenses this year have quite an impact on the fund balance for this fund, but it is expected and manageable.-The FY 2016 fiscal budget should observe savings since there are no immediate projects planned.



Fund 203 LOCAL STREETS 

                        FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 90,499.00$          

PROJECTED Fiscal July 2013 ‐ June 2014 

   Total Revenues  100,445.00$     

   Total Appropriations  181,841.00$     

 Net Revenues/Appropriations  (81,396.00)$        

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2014  9,103.00$          

                                        DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE OF $  81,396

Fiscal July 2014 ‐ June 2015

   Revenues 99,545.00$       

   Project Revenues  16,000.00$       

    TOTAL REVENUES 115,545.00$     

 APPROPRIATIONS 126,709.00$     

 PROJECT  APPROPRIATIONS 33,500.00$       

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 160,209.00$     

 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS (44,664.00)$      

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2015 (35,561.00)$       

                                             DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE OF $ 44,664

OPTIONS:

Change procedure for Snow Removal during the winter , potential savings in salt & Labor,

equipment rental 

Transfer funds from General Fund

No Repairs and Maintenace on Local Streets 

City Council Packet 100 April 28, 2014

azettel
Text Box
-This fund is in big trouble. Without any maintenance or repair appropriations, this fund is in deficit by over $10,000. Unfortunately, this fund will probably not even have $10,000 in the bank by the end of this fiscal year. -Project appropriations drive the deficit up to almost $45,000.-Options:     1. Do nothing and bankrupt the local street fund     2. Eliminate project appropriations AND reduce snow and ice removal.     3. Transfer funds from the general fund (preferred, past practice) or major street fund     4. Some combination of 2 & 3.



Fund 226 GARBAGE FUND 

                        FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 412,165.00$        

PROJECTED Fiscal July 2013 ‐ June 2014 

   Total Revenues  326,808.00$     

   Total Appropriations  444,440.00$     

 Net Revenues/Appropriations  (117,632.00)$     

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2014  294,533.00$      

                                        DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE OF $  117,632

Fiscal July 2014 ‐ June 2015

   Revenues 333,869.00$     

   Project Revenues  ‐$                   

    TOTAL REVENUES 333,869.00$     

 APPROPRIATIONS 443,012.00$     

 PROJECT  APPROPRIATIONS ‐$                   

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 443,012.00$     

 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS (109,143.00)$   

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2015 185,391.00$      

                                          DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE OF $ 109,143

City Council Packet 101 April 28, 2014

azettel
Text Box
-This fund is in bad shape, but it is still manageable. -Operations are not sustainable, but fund balance can cover operations for a couple more years.-A levy change is probably still needed to offset some of the deficit this year.     1. An increase of 0.2770 mils would raise $39,288, resulting in a $69,854 deficit     2. An increase of 0.5541 mils (maximum) would raise $78,592, resulting in a $30,550 deficit.-Much of the additional costs are related to one-time increases in wood chipping (~$30,000)-Waste contract service changes are not practical (I will explain at the meeting)-A renegotiation of the rates for existing services is forthcoming and should result in savings for part of the FY 2015. I will explain this process as well. The impact is completely unknown.



Fund 248 ‐ DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT FUND

                        FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 41,364.00$        

PROJECTED Fiscal July 2013 ‐ June 2014 

   Total Revenues  1,223.00$         

   Total Appropriations  6,850.00$         

 Net Revenues/Appropriations  (5,627.00)$        

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2014  35,737.00$        

                                        DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE OF $  5,627

Fiscal July 2014 ‐ June 2015

   Revenues 106,240.00$     

    TOTAL REVENUES 106,240.00$     

 APPROPRIATIONS 79,750.00$       

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 79,750.00$       

 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 26,490.00$       

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2015 62,227.00$        

                                          INCREASE IN FUND BALANCE OF $ 26,490

                       FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 62,227.00$          

City Council Packet 102 April 28, 2014

azettel
Text Box
-This fund is doing great. -Revenues are expected for the first time in half a decade, and funds are projected to be used to offset city expenses related to the parking improvements, streetscape, and demolitions.-The downside is that this fund is highly susceptible to change based on the smallest depreciations in the downtown tax base, resulting in the complete inability to predict future year activity. 



Fund 265 ‐ DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND

                        FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 14,267.00$        

PROJECTED Fiscal July 2013 ‐ June 2014 

   Total Revenues  9,276.00$         

   Total Appropriations  11,967.00$       

 Net Revenues/Appropriations  (2,691.00)$        

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2014  11,576.00$        

                                        DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE OF $  2,691

Fiscal July 2014 ‐ June 2015

   Revenues 7,850.00$          

    TOTAL REVENUES 7,850.00$         

 APPROPRIATIONS 7,850.00$          

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 7,850.00$         

 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS ‐$                   

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2015 11,576.00$        

                                          NO CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

                        FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 ‐$                      

City Council Packet 103 April 28, 2014

azettel
Text Box
-This is the fund set up to support the Flint Area Narcotics Group.-It is generally supported by a transfer from the general fund to support dues on an annul basis.



Fund 275 ‐ SENIOR OPERATIONS

                        FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 50.00$                

PROJECTED Fiscal July 2013 ‐ June 2014 

   Total Revenues  2.00$                 

   Total Appropriations  2.00$                 

 Net Revenues/Appropriations  ‐$                   

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2014  50.00$                

                                        NO CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Fiscal July 2014 ‐ June 2015

   Revenues 4.00$                 

    TOTAL REVENUES 4.00$                 

 APPROPRIATIONS 4.00$                 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 4.00$                 

 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS ‐$                   

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2015 50.00$                

                                          NO CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

                        FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 50.00$                

City Council Packet 104 April 28, 2014



Fund 350 CITY HALL DEBT

                        FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 2,469.00$          

PROJECTED Fiscal July 2013 ‐ June 2014 

   Total Revenues  81,367.00$       

   Total Appropriations  81,330.00$       

 Net Revenues/Appropriations  37.00$               

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2014  2,506.00$          

                                     INCREASE IN FUND BALANCE $ 37.00

Fiscal July 2014 ‐ June 2015

   Revenues 78,625.00$       

    TOTAL REVENUES 78,625.00$       

 APPROPRIATIONS 78,625.00$       

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 78,625.00$       

 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS ‐$                   

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2015 2,506.00$          

                                          NO CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

City Council Packet 105 April 28, 2014

azettel
Text Box
-This is a routine fund that covers one payment each year for the city hall debt service. Money is transfered in from various funds to cover the cost in a ratio that reflects the use of the building.-We recently received notice of an increase in fees for this bond payment of $525 annually. This is not reflected in these numbers.



Fund 401 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

                        FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 8.00$                  

PROJECTED Fiscal July 2013 ‐ June 2014 

   Total Revenues  ‐$                   

   Total Appropriations  ‐$                   

 Net Revenues/Appropriations  ‐$                   

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2014  8.00$                  

                                     NO CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Fiscal July 2014 ‐ June 2015

   Revenues ‐$                   

    TOTAL REVENUES ‐$                   

 APPROPRIATIONS ‐$                   

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS ‐$                   

 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS ‐$                   

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2015 8.00$                  

                                  NO CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

City Council Packet 106 April 28, 2014



Fund 402 FIRE EQUIPMENT

                        FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 81,702.00$        

PROJECTED Fiscal July 2013 ‐ June 2014 

   Total Revenues  51.00$               

   Total Appropriations  ‐$                   

 Net Revenues/Appropriations  51.00$               

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2014  81,753.00$        

                                     INCREASE IN FUND BALANCE $51.00

Fiscal July 2014 ‐ June 2015

   Revenues 20,050.00$       

    TOTAL REVENUES 20,050.00$       

 APPROPRIATIONS ‐$                   

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS ‐$                   

 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 20,050.00$       

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2015 101,803.00$      

                                  INCREASE IN FUND BALANCE $ 20,000

City Council Packet 107 April 28, 2014

azettel
Text Box
-This fund was wisely set up years ago in anticipation of a large equipment purchase for the fire department. -Funds have been added when available.-Whether such a piece of equipment is purchased this year or not, we are budgeting $20,000. This is probably the minimum amount to sustain equipment in the fire department on average. -If the city council chooses to proceed with the purchase of an engine this year or next, the recommendation would be to use the balance of this fund and an additional $20,000 per year to pay off any such purchase. Payoff of the current equipment proposal would take an additional five years.



Fund 590 WATER FUND

                        FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 1,100,126.00$   

PROJECTED Fiscal July 2013 ‐ June 2014 

   Total Revenues  1,542,887.00$ 

   Total Appropriations  1,470,405.00$ 

 Net Revenues/Appropriations  72,482.00$       

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2014  1,172,608.00$   

                                    INCREASE IN FUND BALANCE $72,482

Fiscal July 2014 ‐ June 2015

   Revenues 1,478,350.00$  

    TOTAL REVENUES 1,478,350.00$ 

 APPROPRIATIONS 1,520,522.00$  

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 1,520,522.00$ 

 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS (42,172.00)$      

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2015 1,130,436.00$   

                                  DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE $ 42,172

City Council Packet 108 April 28, 2014

azettel
Text Box
-This fund is doing just fine, but there is not a long term plan for main replacement.-Rates may need to be adjusted to reflect any rate changes coming from Detroit (short term) and the Karegnondi Authority (long term).



Fund 591 ‐ SEWER FUND

 

                        FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 2,258,362.00$   

PROJECTED Fiscal July 2013 ‐ June 2014 

   Total Revenues  1,118,304.00$ 

   Total Appropriations  1,187,671.00$ 

 Net Revenues/Appropriations  (69,366.00)$      

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2014  2,188,996.00$   

                             DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE $ 69,366

Fiscal July 2014 ‐ June 2015

   Revenues 1,099,270.00$  

    TOTAL REVENUES 1,099,270.00$ 

 APPROPRIATIONS 1,323,870.00$  

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 1,323,870.00$ 

 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS (224,600.00)$   

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2015 1,964,396.00$   

                                  DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE $ 224,600

City Council Packet 109 April 28, 2014

azettel
Text Box
-This fund is also in good shape for the time being because of the large amount of fund balance. However, operating expenses are about 10% higher than revenues, and capital maintenance adds even more deficit.-Incremental rate increases should be planned so that a large increase is not needed down the road when savings are reduced and expenses are 25% higher than revenues.-Fee increases from Genesee County are planned for this year and the city council will probably need to pass those along.



Fund 661 ‐ MOTOR POOL

 

                        FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 219,220.00$      

PROJECTED Fiscal July 2013 ‐ June 2014 

   Total Revenues  155,159.00$     

   Total Appropriations  196,550.00$     

 Net Revenues/Appropriations  (41,391.00)$      

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2014  177,829.00$      

                                    DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE 41,391

Fiscal July 2014 ‐ June 2015

   Revenues 221,698.00$     

    TOTAL REVENUES 221,698.00$     

 APPROPRIATIONS 253,054.00$     

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 253,054.00$     

 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS (31,356.00)$      

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2015 146,473.00$      

                                  DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE $ 31,356

City Council Packet 110 April 28, 2014

azettel
Text Box
-This fund is in flux because it is uncertain how equipment use with seasonal help and new officers will impact the fund revenues.-Much of this deficit is due to deferred purchases that we intend to make this year, including $58,000 in the police department and $40,000 in the department of public works.-No action or change is recommended at this point.



Fund 865 ‐ SIDEWALKS

 

                        FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 4,424.00$          

PROJECTED Fiscal July 2013 ‐ June 2014 

   Total Revenues  8,652.19$         

   Total Appropriations  9,148.74$         

 Net Revenues/Appropriations  (496.55)$           

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2014  3,927.45$          

                                   DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE $496.55

Fiscal July 2014 ‐ June 2015

   Revenues 1,500.00$          

    TOTAL REVENUES 1,500.00$         

 APPROPRIATIONS 1,500.00$          

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 1,500.00$         

 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS ‐$                   

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2015 3,927.45$          

                                 NO CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

City Council Packet 111 April 28, 2014



Fund 866 ‐ WEED FUND

 

                        FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 30,317.00$        

PROJECTED Fiscal July 2013 ‐ June 2014 

   Total Revenues  3,300.00$         

   Total Appropriations  30,427.00$       

 Net Revenues/Appropriations  (27,127.00)$      

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2014  3,190.00$          

   DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE $27,127

  TRANSFER OF $30,000 TO GENERAL FUND FY14 

Fiscal July 2014 ‐ June 2015

   Revenues 1,500.00$          

    TOTAL REVENUES 1,500.00$         

 APPROPRIATIONS 700.00$             

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 700.00$             

 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS 800.00$             

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2015 3,990.00$          

                                  INCREASE IN FUND BALANCE $ 800

City Council Packet 112 April 28, 2014



Fund 871 ‐ SEWER SPECIAL ASSESSMENT

 

                        FUND BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 3,650.00$          

PROJECTED Fiscal July 2013 ‐ June 2014 

   Total Revenues  ‐$                   

   Total Appropriations  ‐$                   

 Net Revenues/Appropriations  ‐$                   

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2014  3,650.00$          

                                     NO CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Fiscal July 2014 ‐ June 2015

   Revenues ‐$                   

    TOTAL REVENUES ‐$                   

 APPROPRIATIONS ‐$                   

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS ‐$                   

 

NET REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS ‐$                   

Projected Fund Balance June 30, 2015 3,650.00$          

                                  NO CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

City Council Packet 113 April 28, 2014



701,664.00 

619,163.00 

88,000.00 

62,500.00 

42,000.00 

443,000.00 

47,298.00 
64,805.67  165,487.00 

General Fund Revenue Sources

Property Tax Public Safety SAD Franchise Fee

Tower Leases Paramutual Returns Revenue Sharing

EVIP Admin Fee Park, Ord, & Service Fees

City Council Packet 114 April 28, 2014



344,268.80 

1,320,138.00 

563,482.59 

94,790.00 

General Fund Appropriations

Admin (Clerk, Treasurer, Assessing, etc). Public Safety

Dept. Public Works Bonds, Retiree Med, etc.

City Council Packet 115 April 28, 2014



0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

General Fund Major Streets Garbage Fund Water Fund Sewer Fund

Large Cap Fund Balance Impact ‐ No Projects

Revenues Appropriations Remaing Fund Balance

City Council Packet 116 April 28, 2014



(50,000)

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

Local Streets DDA Fund Fire Equip Fund Motor Pool Fund

Small Cap Fund Balance Impact ‐ No Projects

Revenues Appropriations Remaing Fund Balance

City Council Packet 117 April 28, 2014


	2014-04-28, Council Mtg Template
	TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members
	OLD / ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS

	2014-4-14  April-14 Council Minutes
	Land Sale Policy
	Solicitation
	Solicitation Ord -- Draft 4
	CDBG Concept
	CDBG Construction
	CDBG Costs
	MML Loss Control
	Art Guild 2
	SCAAG Incorp
	SCAAG Incorp II
	SCAAG Incorp III
	Market Map
	SC Market Guidelines 2014
	SC Market Application 2014
	2014 Preliminary Special Assessment List
	ATT Terms Sheet
	Comcast
	Police monthly
	Park Board Minutes 2-26-14
	Summary of Budget  for April 28th Meeting
	GF REV Chart
	GF EXP Chart
	Large Cap FB
	Small Cap



